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Vision

To advance national human resource development, the ETDP SETA envisages an

education, training and development sector in which:

• The skills levels of employees are raised;

• There is a healthy balance between supply and demand in the labour market;

• There are diverse, flexible routes for initial and in-service education and

training;

• A variety of career paths are available;

• The quality of provision is improved;

• The levy grant scheme is efficiently administered;

• There is regular liaison with providers, other SETAs, the Department of Labour,

the National Skills Authority (NSA) and the South African Qualifications

Authority (SAQA) and its structures; and 

• Internal and external communication is effective.

Mission

The mission of the ETDP SETA is to promote and facilitate an increase in the skills

profile of the sector’s workforce to benefit employers and employees in the sector by

encouraging a partnership between public and private organisations and to assure the

quality of provision of education, training and development.

Education, Training

and Development:

Creating a Platform For

Skills Development
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The overriding aim of the skills legislation is to raise the

skills levels and qualifications of the nation's workforce.

This dovetails with the government's macro economic

objective of enhancing the quality of life of all the

country's citizens through initiatives to improve the

nation's productivity and competitiveness, attracting

foreign direct investment and increasing employment or

self-employment opportunities.

The ETDP SETA, established in March 2000 in terms of

the Skills Development Act (enacted in 1998), is one of

the 25 SETAs tasked with implementing the National

Skills Development Strategy.

The ETDP SETA is a stakeholder body, with a

constitution agreed upon by stakeholders and approved

by the Minister of Labour. The Board of the SETA consists

of organised employers, organised labour and

professional bodies in the sector. Representatives of

employers and organised labour are appointed from the

ten Departments of Education (the Budget Chamber) and

from levy paying and levy exempt organisations (the

Levy Chamber). The Board develops policy and strategy

while the SETA's Executive Committee oversees policy

implementation.

Within this overarching framework, a Budget Chamber

addresses the distinct needs of public education, while a

Levy Chamber interfaces with levy paying member

organisations to meet their specific needs and

requirements. In addition, Joint Standing Committees

oversee the work of all SETA divisions - with an

emphasis on the three core divisions: the Learnerships

and Skills Programmes, Constituency Support Services

(CSS), and the Education, Training and Development

Quality Assurance Division.

The education, training and development (ETD) 
sector - a large and diverse sector with substantial skills
needs - is the primary focus of the ETDP SETA. This
pivotal sector is a major employer of labour and plays 
a key role in supporting a number of other 
economic sectors.

Constituencies being serviced by the ETDP SETA are:
• Independent schools
• Trade unions as employers
• Political parties as employers
• Private providers of ETD
• NGOs/CBOs in ETD
• Higher education institutions
• Libraries and archives
• ECD centres
• SGBs as employers
• Public FET institutions as employers
• General research and development organisations
• Department of Education

ETDP SETA ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE
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Key Elements In Driving Transformation

As part of the government's drive to make South Africa more globally competitive, the National Skills

Development Strategy (NSDS) aims to provide the country's citizens with the cognitive and practical skills to

enable them to compete meaningfully in the economic marketplace.

Integral to this strategy was the establishment by the government of 25 Sector Education and Training

Authorities (SETAs), of which the Education, Training and Development Practices, Sector Education and

Training Authority (ETDP SETA) is one.



THE ETDP
ORGANISATIONAL

STRUCTURE

The ETDP SETA is made up of six divisions, in addition

to the Chief Executive's office. The functions of these

divisions are briefly outlined as follows.

The CEO's Office

• Provides leadership and support to the

constitutional structures - as well as to senior

management internally - and manages the SETA's

policy development processes

• Is responsible for developing, implementing and

reviewing the SETA's quality management system

(QMS). This is currently in the roll-out phase, along

with an MIS (Management Information System)

• Manages the Strategic Planning Support Unit and

monitors the SETA's divisions on an ongoing basis

to ensure that SETA objectives and targets are being

met. It also manages the communications function

of the SETA, both internal and external

The CEO's office reports to the ETDP SETA Board, the

Department of Labour, the South African Qualifications

Authority (SAQA) and the Department of Education on

the performance of the SETA.

It also accounts for SETA expenditure and manages

partnerships and strategic relationships.

Strategic Planning and 
Support Unit

The purpose of the Strategic Planning and Support Unit

(SPSU), is to provide strategic planning and support to

the Chief Executive Officer in focusing the activities of

the ETDP SETA to deliver relevant and responsive

service to the constituent members.

The work of the SPSU is defined by the following activities:

• Strategic planning

• Strategic guidance

• Technical advice for management

• Implementation

• Tracking, monitoring and support

• Integration
• Focus of inter-divisional activities
• General reporting
• Communication of performance

Finance Division

• Manages and reports on the SETA's operational
budget, specifically income received and expenditure
incurred by the SETA's various divisions

• Manages invoices and payments on behalf of the
SETA and advises the management team and the
constituent structures on financial risks and risk
management strategies

• Develops policies and procedures to ensure
compliance with GAAP and the PFMA

• Gives strategic advice on direction, budgeting and
spending to achieve SETA goals

• Manages the implementation of the National Skills
Fund Project

Grants Management Unit

Established in March 2003, this department is the most
recent member of the organisational structure.

The office is responsible for the following activities:
• Registration of constituent skills development

facilitators (SDF)
• Assessment and authorisation of workplace skills

plans (WSPs) and annual training reports (ATRs)
• Prioritisation and processing of discretionary grants
• Monitoring and evaluation of discretionary grants

projects
• Measuring the impact made by both mandatory

and discretionary grants

Corporate Services

This division comprises four departments which provide
support to the SETA's other divisions. These are: Human
Resources (HR); Information Technology (IT); Payroll;
and Operations Administration.

Among its specific duties, the division:
• Manages the technical services, accommodation,

security and capital equipment needs of the
organisation. It also oversees the SETA's
procurement processes to ensure compliance with
SETA policies and the PFMA
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• Manages the SETA's management information
system (MIS)

• Ensures effective human resource management
within the SETA

Constituency Support Services

This division advises and supports the ETD sector in
planning and implementing skills development for its
employers.

Its prime functions include:
• Skill planning
• Research, evaluation and information  management
• SDFs and SDCs capacity building
• Constituency planning, management and 

co-ordination
• Chamber co-ordination

Learnerships and Skills
Programmes

This division's core focus is to establish learnerships and
skills programmes to address the sector's skills needs.
Working in tandem with stakeholder structures in the
various ETD subsectors, the division aims to:

• Ascertain the needs of a subsector through
reference to the sector and workplace skills plans
and from additional research, where required, as
well as by sounding out stakeholder views

• Identify qualifications, working with the ETDQA
and NSB 05 structures to fill gaps

• Design and register learnerships with the
Department of Labour

• Promote skills programmes
• Support efforts by stakeholders to identify

workplaces, providers and learners
• Facilitate the completion and registration of

learnership agreements and access to SETA grants
• Monitor the implementation of Learnerships and

Skills Programmes and evaluate their impact

Education, Training and
Development Quality Assurance 

The ETDQA division strives to assure quality delivery of

lifelong learning in the education, training and

development sector. Its primary functions are to:

• Accredit constituent providers for specific

standards and qualifications

• To promote quality and to monitor the service

provision of constituent providers 

• Evaluate assessment and facilitate moderation

amongst constituent providers

• Register constituent assessors for specified

standards and/or qualifications

• Take responsibility for the certification of 

learners

• Recommend new standards or qualifications - or

amendments to existing standards and

qualifications - to national standards bodies

• Maintain a database acceptable to SAQA

• Submit reports to SAQA in accordance with the

requirements of the Authority

Sakhisizwe Project

Sakhisizwe Project is a strategic project funded by the

Department of Labour and is focussing on skills

development in the twenty-one Presidential Nodal Areas

of South Africa as endorsed by the Board of the ETDP

Seta. The Presidential Nodal Areas are those areas mostly

marked by poverty in South Africa. 

Its prime functions are:

• Sakhisizwe Project aims to pursue its strategic

objectives within its legislative framework

• Enhancing the process of providing basic services

delivery (particularly in education and in areas in

which NGOs and CBOs play a meaningful role) 

to communities

• Provide learners with quality structured learning

together with work experience to enable learners to

achieve credits on the NQF and to make them more

employable 

• Sakhisizwe will aim to work towards the

sustainability of its projects and learning

interventions to carry on beyond its interventions

(ie. build the capacity of local government to plan,

manage and monitor learning interventions)

• Employing and building the skills of the staff of the

Sakhisizwe Project to become expert implementers

of learning interventions
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The Levy Chamber

The Levy Chamber represents the organisations that pay levies. The Levy Chamber consists of constituencies as per the

table below.

Distribution of institutions and employees in Levy Chamber constituencies, according to type of institution, is in the

process of being reviewed with the review of the Sector Skills Plan (SSP).

A research report published by the Human Sciences Research Council (HSRC) in May 2002 profiled the Levy Chamber

as indicated above.

* Process to merge higher education institutions

6,1

1,9

0,4

9,3

0,6

0,1

0,1

81,2

-

-

0,3

100

26,9

7,2

0,2

15,2

1,9

22,9

0,1

24,9

-

-

0,9

100

1 494

464

104

2 276

150

36*

21

19 859

-

-

66

24 470

51 467

13 851

305

29 049

3 641

43 893

105

47 675

-

-

1 654

191 640

Independent schools

Trade unions as employers

Political parties as employers

Private providers of ETD

NGOs/CBOs in ETD

Higher education institutions

Libraries and archives

ECD centres

SGBs as employers (not available)

Public FET institutions as employers (not available)

General research and development organisations

Total Levy Chamber

Percent                                 Count

Constituencies Institutions           Employment           Institutions       Employment
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The Budget Chamber

The Budget Chamber represents the National and Provincial Departments of Education.

In its May 2002 ETD sector profile report, the HSRC indicated that there were approximately 32 284 institutions in the Budget Chamber

employing about 464 428 people. This can be shown diagrammatically as follows:

Total number of institutions and employment in the Budget Chamber

Province

Eastern Cape

Free State

Gauteng

Kwazulu-Natal

Mpumalanga

Northern Cape

Limpopo

North West

Western Cape

National DoE

SA total

Province

Eastern Cape

Free State

Gauteng

Kwazulu-Natal

Mpumalanga

Northern Cape

Limpopo

North West

Western Cape

National DoE

SA total

CoE1

34

CoE

390

466

1 043

1 482

299

66

923

579

367

5 615

Technical

colleges

26

10

32

24

9

5

14

11

21

152

Technical

colleges

1 182

795

2 556

1 233

403

225

731

690

1 348

9 160

Public

schools

6 178

2 538

1 905

5 693

2 053

486

4 138

2 294

1 504

26 789

Public

schools3

69 112

25 957

46 096

74 115

26 987

6 816

56 747

35 456

27 795

369 575

Public

ECD

406

271

442

1 460

147

121

279

35

482

3 623

Public

ECD

729

623

1 126

2 351

254

161

411

95

1 078

6 828

Public

ABET

276

130

169

155

170

50

406

261

103

1 720

Public

ABET

1 969

1 100

1 812

1 115

688

256

1 731

1 373

806

10 849

Admin

HQ

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

10

Admin

HQ

8 458

5 314

1 736

8 942

3 951

2 372

5 236

4 535

8 350

636

63 037

Total2

6 886

2 949

2 548

7 332

2 379

662

4 837

2 601

2 110

1

32 285

Total

81 840

34 255

67 366

89 238

32 582

9 896

65 779

42 728

39 744

636

527 465

1 No provincial breakdown available
2 Does not include number of Colleges of Education 

and admin/HQ institutions
3 Administrative and support staff not included 

Institutions count

Employment count



The ETDP SETA has reached the end of the fourth year

of its existence and this Annual Report aims to reflect

on the achievements and challenges of the past year,

based upon the strong foundations and valuable

learning experiences gained in the previous three

years, since the SETA’s inception. 

In 2003, the ETDP SETA was called upon to make a

presentation to the members of the Portfolio

Committee on Education in Cape Town, to publicly

account for achievement of its mandate. This was a

very important meeting, the first of its kind, as public

representatives posed questions on any issue that they

felt required clarity. It is hoped that this type of

meeting will become an annual event, and that other

Committees, especially the Portfolio Committee on

Labour, will afford the ETDP SETA the same platform.

On 3 to 5 September, 2003, for the first time, the ETDP

SETA held a National Conference at the International

Convention Centre in Durban. This conference

afforded constituencies the opportunity to engage

with the ETDP SETA processes in particular, and skills

development processes in general. However, the

conference could not complete its task in the allotted

time, and unfinished business was deferred to the

Annual General Meeting, which will be held in

August 2004.

In an attempt to meet the aims and objectives of the

ETDP SETA, to date, we have had four performance

reviews. These included the Price Waterhouse

Coopers’ Review of the Finance and Administration

Division, and Gobodo Incorporated conducted a

performance audit of the Learnerships and Skills

Programmes Division. A SETA-wide performance

audit was also conducted by Prodigy (in collaboration

with Grant Thornton), and the Board of the ETDP

SETA also conducted its own enquiry into the

operations of the ETDP SETA management. The

consolidation of the content and recommendations of

all of these reports is in process and will be utilised to

maximise the strengths of the ETDP SETA, and to

address any weaknesses.
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The ETDP SETA is working extremely hard to speed

up the process of disbursement of discretionary grants

despite some challenges, which include the lack of

capacity of organisations that applied for these grants

to meet the fundamental, yet crucial basic

requirements of funding regulations. This dilemma of

effectively funding the most needy of these

organisations is one that not only faces the ETDP

SETA, but is being experienced by all stakeholders,

including the Department of Labour, and if it is not

addressed as a matter of urgency, SETAs will continue

to have unspent funds in their banking accounts.

The ETDP SETA’s 1999 Constitution required some

amendments, and was revised in 2002 by the Board.

Unfortunately, these amendments have not yet been

approved, and this presents a challenge as the ETDP

SETA endeavours to continue to fulfil its role in the

Sector. An amended Constitution, we believe, would

allow the ETDP SETA to apply recent developments in

the Education, Training and Development Sector and

carry out its mandate more effectively. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the

members of the governance structures, ETDP SETA

Chief Executive Office and staff at all levels and other

valued stakeholders, including the Department of

Labour, for their support in many forms. It is due to

this support that the ETDP SETA will be able to

achieve its aims and objectives, linked to the Skills

Development Act of 1998 and the National Skills

Development Strategy (2000 – 2005).

Sincerely

VINCENT MAPHUMULO

CHAIRPERSON
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QASA Discretionary Grants Research Launch in
March 2004 attended by Minister MMS. Mdladlana
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The 2003/2004 fiscal year has been an extremely active

one for the ETDP SETA, as we strive to meet both the

National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) and Sector

Skills Plan (SSP) targets and objectives.

I would like to share some of the year's highlights and

achievements with all our stakeholders.

Given the diversity, complexity and size of the

Education, Training and Development (ETD) sector, it is

essential that we have a capable and adequately skilled

workforce in place to enable the EDTP SETA to deliver

on its mandate of raising the level of skills and

qualifications of the country's workforce - a goal

which cannot be compromised.

To this end, the ETDP SETA staff complement has

been increased to 95 permanent posts since our last

annual report.

The ETDP SETA is made up of the following core divisions:

• Constituency Support Services Division

• Learnerships and Skills Programmes Division

• Education, Training and Development Quality

Assurance Division

• National Skills Fund Project

• Grants Management Department

The support divisions and units are:

• Corporate Services, comprising: Human Resources,

Payroll, Operations, and Information Technology

• Finance and Administration Division

• Communications Unit

• Strategic Planning and Support Unit

This report will summarise the achievements of the

SETA's divisions, projects and support units in

contributing to the objectives of the organisation in the

year under review.

The Strategic Planning and Support Unit (SPSU)

supports the SETA's Chief Executive Officer in

delivering relevant and responsive services to its

Constituent Members. Among these, the SPSU provides

strategic planning and guidance; technical advice for

management; assistance in implementing business 
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plans - and tracks, monitors and provides support for

projects and operational plans. It also encourages the

divisions to adopt an integrated and systemic approach

to meeting the SETA's objectives and reports back to the

different governance structures on performance achieved

in general.

Sakhisizwe - the ETDP SETA's National Skills Fund

strategic project - addresses skills development

priorities through workplace-based learnerships and

skills programmes.

The bulk of the project's energies and resources are

focused on the 21 Presidential Nodal Areas, with the aim

of combating poverty in the poorest communities.

Among highlights to date in the roll-out of the project, 

1 500 learners have been enrolled across the nine

provinces in the Early Childhood Development (ECD)

level 4 learnership. In the Adult Basic Education and

Training (ABET) level 4 learnership, 685 learners have

been enrolled - and 844 Mentors and Assessors trained in

the various provinces. R41 million (38%) of the R81

million earmarked for implementing NSF-funded

learnerships has also been disbursed.

Considerable progress has been made in meeting NSDS
targets since 2001. To date, mandatory grants amounting
to R103  030 791 have been paid. It is also encouraging to
note that all the Departments of Education (DoE) have
submitted their Workforce Skills Plans (WSP's). In
addition, 1 237 Skills Development Facilitators have
been registered since 2001.

The discretionary funding rolled over to 2003/2004 - out
of the original R74-million allocated in 2002/2003 - was
spread over 12 funding programmes. 910 out of 1 081
contracts have been returned and payments have been
made across the 12 SETA constituencies. Discretionary
funds have been used to support - among others -
initiatives such as impact studies on HIV/AIDS, ECD,
ABET, special needs persons and the training of
assessors, moderators and mentors to implement
learnerships. Some 40% of the available discretionary
funding available for 2003/2004 had been disbursed
across the 12 constituencies as at 31 March 2004. 

During the 2003/2004 fiscal year, discretionary grants

were made to several institutions and organisations,

from which many hundreds of individuals have benefited

from funding given for training-related initiatives.

These comprise:

Higher Education Institutions (HEIs); Further Education

and Training Institutions (FETs) (990 individuals); Early

Childhood Development (ECD) (31); Trade unions (411);

School governing bodies (SGBs) (309); Private

providers (4 406); Independent schools (631); 

Non-Governmental Organisations (1377) and

Departments of Education (380).

There has been limited participation by political parties,

libraries, archives and research organisations due to

technical problems. However, 63% of available funding

has been disbursed to research organisations.

Of the R15 million set aside to implement learnerships,

R8.7 million (58%) of the total amount has been

disbursed.

Achievements

I have been greatly encouraged by the enthusiasm and

zeal shown by those responsible for implementing the

SETA's strategic objectives. 

During the past three years of my tenure as CEO of 

the ETDP SETA, they have pulled together as a 

co-ordinated and cohesive force in working to meet

NSDS targets.

The Strategic Planning and Support Unit has a number of

systems in place to help drive this process, which the

divisions have begun integrating into their operations.

We are currently rolling out the Quality Management

System (QMS) and a Management Information System

(MIS). The implementation of the MIS will begin on 1st

July 2004 and will be completed on 31st March 2005. Our

Human Resources Development policy (HRD) is already

being implemented and the HRD Committee comprises

staff representatives at all levels.

Among other achievements, the ETDP SETA has been

accepted as an Investors in People pilot organisation

(IIP). Of the 20 organisations identified as an NSDS

target, the SETA to date has 12 organisations taking part

in channel 4 of the IIP.
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The roll-out of the Performance Management and

Development System (PMDS) will be finalised by

August 2004.

The Information Technology Unit is functional and will

continue to provide support to infrastructural

development to ensure that there is a seamless information

and technology infrastructure within the organisation.

The ETDP SETA website has been improved. The

intranet - successfully launched in December 2003 - is

also being revamped to enable it to interface with both

the website and the MIS for effective information

management.

The payroll department, established on January 1 this

year, has introduced an in-house VIP payroll system,

which went live in March 2004. Expert advice is instantly

available to staff on salary issues, so helping to ensure a

smooth running payroll system. 

The SETA has also implemented a computerised

purchase order system, to be used by all divisions, which

aims to make the purchase requisition process more

effective and efficient.

To house its increased staff complement, the SETA leased

additional space which has also given us a facility for in-

house conferencing and large forums. As a result, we

have been able to save costs on external conference

facilities - and these savings have offset the costs of the

new leased premises.

Finance policies and procedures were reviewed and

approved by the Board during the year for

implementation. A risk assessment report was developed

in order to identify and address potential financial and

operational risks.

Apart from providing mandatory and discretionary

grants, the SETA has been actively supporting its

constituencies through a series of workshops across

the regions.

Several workshops have been conducted for the Levy

and Budget Chamber constituencies, primarily to consult

on constituency service plans and to establish common

approaches to constituency development.

In addition, 19 workshops were held for private

providers of ETD; 22 each for school governing body

employers and independent schools; and seven for

public FET colleges as employers. 

There were also discussions on how to best serve this

constituency, given that it is partly linked to both the levy

chamber and the DoE.

NGO's/CBO's benefited from 19 workshops, with 29

conducted for early childhood centres and two for higher

education institutions, to finalise constituency service

plans. Workshops have still to be conducted for political

parties and trade unions.

Constituency support workshops were also used to

mobilise some 700 participants to access discretionary

grants.

In the area of quality assurance, 154 accreditation

applications have been received to date - an increase of

56 over the previous fiscal year. The total number of

applications stood at 252 as at 31 March 2004.

The number of accredited providers (160) represents an
increase of 92 since March 2003. Of these, 106 have
achieved full accreditation status with the remaining 54
attaining provisional accreditation.

Some 37 out of 91 providers had their status elevated
from provisional to full accreditation after complying
with accreditation conditions.

The SETA has also accredited 156 micro and small
enterprises (1-49 employees) and four medium
enterprises (50 - 149 employees).

Some 271 participants attended provider workshops
targeted at unaccredited providers located in the
Presidential Nodal Areas.

A total of 45 357 learners had been registered on the
Quality Assurance of Learners Achievement (MIS)
database solution as at 31 March 2004. Of these, 16 096
learners have been assessed and their learner
achievements endorsed. A total of 12 805 learner
achievements have been endorsed for the generic
assessor unit standards, while 29 261 learners are in the
process of completing their learning.
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A total of 691 assessors have been registered to date. In

addition, the ETDQA has entered into Memoranda of

Understanding (MOUs) with the other 16 SETA ETQA's

in response to SAQA's legislative requirements.

The SAQA has gazetted its intention to include the unit

standard Evaluate Education and Training Providers

level 7. No public objections had been received by the

closing date of 30 April 2004.

Accordingly, the standard was allocated to the ETDP

SETA as of 1 May 2004.

To date, the SETA has registered 14 learnerships with the

DoL. A total of 17 ABET NQF level 5 unemployed

learners (18.2) graduated in the Free State nodal zone

(QwaQwa) on 2 April 2004.

In KwaZulu-Natal, 85 learners (18.2) ABET NQF level 5

learners have been registered and in the Eastern Cape, 110

ABET NQF levels 4 and 5 employed learners (18.1) have

been registered. In Mpumalanga, 60 (unemployed) (18.2)

and 40 (employed) (18.1) ABET NQF level 5 learners have

been registered.

GDS Targets for 2003-04

The SETA funded the following learnerships in respect of

the GDS targets:

ABET level 4 learnership with a total of 119 learners,

while 165 learners have been trained in the

Occupationally Directed Education Training and

Development learnership (ODETD). Of these, 98 fall

within the 18.1 (employed youth) category and 65 within

the 18.2 (unemployed youth) category.

Challenges

Challenges facing the ETDP SETA include the shortage of

accredited training providers - especially black providers

in some provinces. We are constantly working to address

this gap.

Another hurdle is the reluctance of some employers to

buy into the idea of hosting learnerships within their

organisations. This makes it difficult to implement

learnerships without employer participation.

In addition, very few learners with disabilities and/or
special needs are participating in learnerships. We hope
to see an improvement in this through the integrated
recruitment strategy we have introduced for learners
with disabilities and/or special needs.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) also remains 
a challenge, given that few accredited providers 
have the capacity and resources to conduct RPL
assessments.

Future Highlights

Forthcoming highlights will include the ETDP SETA's
Annual General Meeting later this year, to which we are
all looking forward.

A number of key priorities will be among the highlights
for  the ETDP SETA’s various divisions and support units
in the coming financial year.

One of the ETDQA Division’s  priorities will be to engage
with role players and stakeholders in initiatives aimed at
rural providers to increase the number of accredited
providers in all provinces. 

The Finance and Administration Division is set to take

advantage of new technological developments such as

the introduction of  spontaneous network set-ups which

will help to enhance communications solutions and

budget management.

A forthcoming highlight for the Corporate Services

Division will be the completion of the Management

Information System (MIS)  project – in which

implementation of the division’s IT unit has been closely

involved – by 31 March, 2005.

In the year ahead, the Constituency Support Services

Division will be aiming  to set up an agenda for the ETD

sector, as part of the new NSDS, in support of the

Centres of Excellence concept and to enable the ETDP

SETA to speed up the development of skills provision in

rural areas.

Among highlights for the Strategic Support Unit will be

the implementation of the Quality Management System

(QMS) in the second quarter of the 2004/2005 financial

year, which will be linked to the development of the MIS.
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The Grants Management Department will be focusing

strongly on fast-tracking second and third phase

training. It will also be conducting an impact study on

grants disbursed to date in collaboration with the Seta’s

research unit.

During 2004/2005, the National Skills Project will be

implementing additional skills programmes in the

Presidential Nodal Areas in ECD, ABET, community

development, barriers to learning, HIV/AIDS and

youth development.

A key priority for the Learnerships and Skills

Programmes Division will be the implementation of the

ICT learnership in early 2005. This offers exciting

potential to use modern technology for teaching

purposes within the ETD sector. 

In conclusion, I would like to thank all those who have

the development of our country and its citizens close to

their hearts - especially those who continue to invest

their efforts and commitment to upholding the vision

and mission of the ETDP SETA.

A special "Thank You" goes to the staff at the ETDP SETA,

and all our partners in service delivery, members of the

Board, members of the Executive Committee, Joint

Standing Committees, Budget and Levy Chambers,

project teams, reference groups, stakeholders and service

providers at large. Your invaluable contributions are

highly appreciated.

May the impending year bring prosperity and may it be

rewarding and challenging to each one of us.

Sincerely

NOMLAMLI MAHANJANA

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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NSF:
Northern Cape 70
Western Cape 185
Gauteng 80
Eastern Cape 800
Limpopo 80
North West 70
Mpumalanga 50
Free State 120
KZN 730

Learnerships:
Northern Cape 31
Western Cape 233
Gauteng 372
Eastern Cape 357
Limpopo 98
North West 47
Mpumalanga 98
Free State 78
KZN 508

Learnerships and Skills Programmes Division for the Period 2001-2004
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Nomlamli Mahanjana: 
CEO of the ETDP SETA

Nomlamli Mahanjana has been Chief Executive Officer
of the EDTP SETA since June 2001. She was previously
Director of Education Management and Governance
Development at the Department of Education, having
held the post of Director of Education Human
Resources before that. Her considerable academic
achievements include the following degrees: Bachelor
of Personnel Management Honours; Higher Diploma in
Education; Bachelor of Education and Master of
Education (Education Management). She also holds a
certificate in Teacher Planning from the Institute of
Education Planning in Paris; a Master of Management
degree from the Wits Business School and a certificate
in Managing Human Resources in Education from the
Wits School of Public and Development Management.
More recently, she obtained a certificate for a Senior
Executive Programme for Africa, offered jointly by the
Harvard and Wits Business Schools.

Albert Mathebula:
Education, Training and Development
Quality Assurance Manager (acting)

Albert Mathebula joined the ETDP Seta as Head of
Department: Provider Accreditation and Learning
Programme Evaluation in July 2001. Albert holds a
Bachelor of Agriculture in Education from the
University of the North, Bachelor’s Honours degree in
Agriculture specialising in Rural and Community
Development from the University of Pretoria, and a
Masters in Business Administration from
Potchefstroom University of Christian Higher
Education. He also holds a Trainers Certificate from the
National Institute of Training and Development, and an
Advanced Certificate in Management from
Potchefstroom University of Christian Higher

Education. Albert was a Training Centre Manager at the
Northern Training Trust in Tzaneen before joining the
ETDP SETA. He was appointed as ETQA Acting
Manager from 01 December 2003.

Richard Jewison:
Manager for the Learnerships and Skills

Programmes Division

Richard Jewison, who joined the ETDP SETA in August
2001, received his early education in the UK where he
worked in the trade union movement for 20 years, before
moving to South Africa in 1997. Before joining the SETA
staff, as part of a Recognition of Prior Learning Process
he was assessed as having the equivalent of a level six
management qualification. His previous South African
experience included a spell as National Education
Secretary of the National Education, Health and Allied
Workers Union (Nehawu).

Daisy Nyamane:
Manager for Finance and Administration

Daisy Nyamane has held this post since she joined the
organisation in April, 2003. She holds a BCom degree
from UNISA, where she is currently studying for her
MBL degree. She also completed a management course
at the University of the Witwatersrand. Before joining
the SETA, she was Deputy Director in the Finance Unit
of the Gauteng Department of Education.

Winston October:
Manager for the National Skills Fund

Winston October has been in this position since joining

the ETDP SETA in March 2003. He holds a BA degree

and a Higher Degree in Education from the University

of the Western Cape and is currently completing a

Higher Diploma in Company Law at Wits University.
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He has been working in the Development Finance

Sector for 14 years. Mr October has also been a fund

manager for major financing institutions in South

Africa such as NDA, National Lottery Board and

International Funders such as the Mott and Ford

Foundations. Before joining the SETA, he was Project

Manager for the Umsobomvu Youth Fund.

Leonard Saul:
Manager for the Strategic Planning 

and Support Unit

Since joining the ETDP SETA in January, 2003, Leonard

Saul has been Divisional Manager of this unit, which is

responsible for strategic planning in the CEO's office. He

holds a Lower Secondary Diploma from the University

of the Western Cape, a BA degree from UNISA, as well as

a B.Ed and an Educational Management degree from the

University of Free State. Saul is currently studying with

the University of Pretoria for his PhD in outcomes-based

education. Before joining the SETA, he was CEO of the

South African Congress for Early Childhood

Development.

Matime Shele Papane:
Manager for the 

Constituency Support Services

Matime Papane joined the ETDP SETA in June 2003. He

was previously with Naledi, a research institution

working closely with labour unions in South Africa. He

worked for ten years for COSATU, initially as an

Education Officer but later as the Education Secretary. He

holds an MA in Industrial Relations from the University

of Keele in the UK. He holds a certificate of Practitioners

in Adult Education from UNISA. He is currently

finalising an M Ed (Higher Education Studies) with the

University of the Western Cape that focuses on policy

analysis and planning in higher education.

Themba Mnguni:
Manager for Grants

Themba Mnguni joined the ETDP Seta as Grants

Manager in July 2003. He previously worked for Sanco

Gauteng as Provincial Project Manager: Civic

Development Project funded by the ODA (UK) and the

Aplitec Group as a Corporate Relations Manager prior to

being on his own. He did a B.Proc at Wits and a

Community Development Programme with Wits P&DM.

He is currently studying for an L.L.B degree through

Unisa.

Fanyana Ndashe:
Manager for Corporate Services 

Fanyana Ndashe has been with the ETDP SETA since

May 2003. He qualified as an educator at the Botshabelo

Training Institution in 1973 and holds a Master of Science

in Education (MSc.Ed) from Northern Illinois University,

majoring in Curriculum and Supervision. He also

obtained a B.Ed degree from Rand Afrikaans University

and a BA degree from UNISA. He served for 24 years in

the Department of Education in various positions, the

last one being CES for HRD.

During his career he has taken part in a wide range of

courses, including a three-month course in Education

Management at the University of Bristol, UK, as well as

participating in a study visit on education management

development in Canada. Before joining the SETA, he

served a six-year stint as General Manager for Corporate

Services with the Mpumalanga Parks Board.

16

MANAGEMENT PROFILE



Profile

The Strategic Planning and Support Unit (SPSU) - which

began operating in January 2003 - was established to

provide a focused strategic direction for the ETDP SETA.

As part of this mission, the unit assists the SETA's Chief

Executive Officer to deliver a relevant and responsive

service to the SETA's constituent members.

The SPSU's activities include strategic planning and

guidance; technical advice for management; project

implementation; tracking, monitoring and support;

integration of the various departmental programmes;

focusing on inter-divisional activities; general reporting

as well as communicating information on performance

levels achieved by the SETA's various divisions.

The Unit's organisational structure comprises three

permanent posts: These are the SPSU Manager;

Coordinator: Special Projects; and an OD & Policy

Specialist. Beneath this leadership umbrella, the Unit

interacts daily with the SETA's divisions to address their

needs - and through them, to provide an optimum

service to constituent customers.

Achievements

The SPSU has played a key role in ensuring the smooth

operation of several of the SETA's key processes.

Among its achievements, the SPSU has assisted the

ETDP SETA's various divisions in translating the SETA's

Business Plan for 2003/4 into individual divisional

operational plans. 

In the area of Systems Development, a number of

systems, templates and frameworks have been

conceptualised, developed and implemented by the Unit

since its inception.

These include:

SETA-Wide Reporting Framework and
Templates

Based on the needs and criteria set by the CEO and the

SETA Board and SMT, reporting templates were

developed for each division. A uniform template was

subsequently adopted as the SETA-wide reporting

template, for which ongoing support and training in its

application continues to be provided by the SPSU.

General Reporting

The SPSU, which is part of the CEO's office, produces

many of the progress reports which are submitted to

Governance structures such as the Board, EXCO, Audit

Committee, Levy and Budget Chambers, Department of

Labour and Parliament - as well as to other bodies, as

and when required. Reporting is on track, ensuring that

Governance structures are kept informed on a regular

basis of overall progress within the ETDP SETA.

Quality Management System Process

During the year under review, the ETDP SETA - in

conjunction with GTZ - began to re-engineer the SETA's

Quality Management System. After many prolonged

sessions and considerable team work, the high-level

business processes of the SETA have been defined and

the  final phase of the re-vamping of the QMS will be

completed in the new financial year.

Policy Development and Partnerships

The SPSU has developed a Draft Policy Framework and

Policy Referencing System for the SETA. In addition, the

Unit has been establishing links with various

organisations with the aim of strengthening the SETA's

role in servicing the ETD sector. These bodies include the
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HRD Directorate at the University of Cape Town; the

Kagiso Trust; the Eastern Cape Socio-Economic

Consultative Council; the Department of Labour's Skills

Development Information, Research and Evaluation

Unit; GTZ; Gobodo Risk Management and the

Umsobomvu Trust

Performance Audit

The SPSU oversaw the Performance Audit of the ETDP

SETA.

Additional Duties

Building on these achievements, the SPSU has also been

given the responsibility for overseeing the activities of

the secretariat office. It also provides support and

strategic direction for governance processes and

manages the process through which the new board is re-

elected.

In addition, the SPSU provides support and strategic

direction for the communications office as well as

support to the call centre. It also coordinates the

development of the annual report.

Re-establishment of the SETA

The SPSU was also responsible for facilitating and

submitting the SETA re-establishment application to the

Department of Labour in March 2004. The Unit is proud

to announce that a preliminary assessment report from

DoL has been received with a favourable assessment. 

We are looking forward to the formal announcement by

the Minister of Labour, re-establishing the ETDP SETA as

a productive and successful SETA for the next 2005-2009

cycle.

Challenges

The first two quarters of the 2003/4 financial year 

posed challenges in that the SPSU - as a newly-

established Unit - needed time to bed down its

operations and to secure the services of competent 

staff. The division was initially staffed with the Unit

Manager alone. The other two posts were subsequently

filled - one in a temporary and the other in a permanent

capacity. 

Due to the understaffing of the Unit, some of the initial

deadlines set out in the Unit's Operational Plan were not

met. 

Prospects

The pending implementation of the Quality

Management System (QMS) will undoubtedly be a

highlight for the ETDP SETA. We anticipate that the QMS

will be ready for implementation and testing in the

second quarter of the 2003/4 financial year.

Linked to this key project is the development of a

purpose-designed Management Information System

(MIS). The MIS will automate many of the SETA's

processes, which will ultimately result in increased

efficiency within the organisation.
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Profile

The Constituency Support Services (CSS) Division is

critical in skills delivery as a linkage of the SETA to the

entire ETD sector. It is through this division that

employers are able to comply with provisions of the

associated legislation in ensuring that employees develop

appropriate skills to become competent, productive and

empowered in the workplace.  While the end result of the

legislation and of the work of this division is the

development of employees in the workplace, managing

the process and issues associated with workplace skills

development constitutes most of the division’s work. 

• Skills planning
• Constituency planning, management and

coordination
• Research, evaluation and information

management
• SDFs and SDCs capacity building
• Chamber coordination

The division works closely with all the other divisions
in order to foster an understanding of workplace skills
planning processes in the sector. It works with the
ETDQA division in fostering quality assurance in
delivery of training and it must collaborate with the
Learnership and Skills Programme Division in order to
ensure that appropriate programmes are available to
employers and are used appropriately. It also
collaborates with the Grants Management in respect of
research analysis and the strategy for engaging with the
sector.

In order to assist and engage the sector, the division

embarked on a number of programmes through its

advisory and research units. Our programmes are

enabling the SETA to deliver overall on the National

Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) targets by creating

a delivery environment. 

In order for the division to deliver on the above

responsibilities, the following is the structure of the staff

of the division:

Advisors have been able to go into both rural and

peripheral areas to create a better understanding of the

skills development process and hence achieve a buy-in

from the target audience. 

Achievements (2003/4)

The CSS has initiated a process of consultation with

constituencies in the sector. As there are many diverse

and different needs in this sector, finding a unique

approach to service and assist them has been a challenge

in the past. 

Levy Chamber

In an effort to understand the diverse and complex nature

of the constituencies, 116 consultative workshops were

held which culminated in the development and review of

the constituency service plans.

Budget Chamber  

The division conducted a number of initial consultative

workshops for Budget Chamber constituencies. 33

workshops were run for the Department of Education.

19

CONSTITUENCY SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION

CONSTITUENCY SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION



Discretionary grants fund mobilisation

Over 20 mobilisation workshops were conducted in support
of constituencies around the Discretionary grants 2003/4
funding cycle. This took place around December 2003. Over
700 participants were mobilised in these workshops to
ensure that constituencies access this resource.

Research and Analysis linked to the
Sector Skills Planning

In our analysis of the WSP and ATRs as part of the Sector
Skills Planning, we analysed a total of 1 805 Workplace
Skills Plans (WSPs) and a total of 544 Annual Training
Reports (ATRs). These were submitted to the Education,
Training and Development Practices (ETDP) Sector
Education and Training Authority (SETA) between the
years 2000 and 2004 and were captured on the Statistical
Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) for analysis. In this
report it is highlighted that the Independent Schools and
Public Schools, part sponsored by the SGBs, have
submitted 507 and 504 WSPs respectively, making the
two constituencies the leaders in the submission of
WSPs. They were followed by Private Providers
involved in education and training with 336
submissions, and NGOs/CBOs and Technical Colleges
(FET) with 137 and 107 submissions respectively. In
contrast, political parties as employers and libraries and
archives are not really very active in the submission of
their training plans. They have submitted 6 and 4 
WSPs respectively. 

In terms of the ATRs, the Independent Schools submitted
159 reports for the period between 2000 and 2004,
followed by Public Schools, part sponsored by the SGBs,
with 135 submissions, followed by Private Providers
with 105 submissions. The worst scenarios thus far
include research organisations with 7 submissions,
political parties as employers and libraries and archives
with one (1) submission each. This indicates the positive
correlation between the submission of WSPs and ATRs in
all the constituencies.

A closer look at graph 1 shows that there was a
significant increase in the submission of WSPs amongst a
number of constituencies, which are worthy of 
note. The submission rate of WSPs by the Public Schools,
part sponsored by the SGBs, improved from 155 (30.7%)
in 2002-2003 to 292 (57.9%) in 2003-2004; The Early
Childhood Development Centres (ECDs) improved from
11 (20%) in 2002-2003 to 40 (72.7%) in 2003-2004; 
and Private Providers in education and training 
from 128 (38%) in 2002-2003 to 190 (56.5%) 
in 2003-2004. 

There was also a significant drop in the submission rate
in a number of constituencies (graph 1). Trade Unions as
employers dropped from 32 (57%) in 2002-2003 to 13
(23%) in 2003-2004; and political parties as employers
also dropped from 4 (66.6%) in 2002-2003 to 1 (16.6%) 
in 2003-2004.

Graph 2 below gives a picture of the submission of WSPs
for the entire period since the inception of the ETDP SETA.
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There are twenty-two WSPs that were captured from

the DoEs. Eight (36,4%) were submitted during the

period 2001-2002, five (22,7%) for 2002-2003. Only the

Northern Cape Department of Education submitted

their WSP for 2004.

There is only one template, which was developed for

the capturing of ATRs, which is compatible for all the

years. On closer analysis there has been a significant

increase in the submission rate of training reports in a

number of constituencies. 

Graph 3 above shows that: Independent Schools

improved from 34 (21.4%) in 2001-2002 to 124 (78%) in

2002-2003; NGOs/CBOs from 2 (5.7%) in 2001-2002 to

33 (94.4%) in 2002-2003; ECDs from 4 (20%) in 2001-2002

to 16 (80%) in 2002-2003; Higher Education from 2

(10.5%) in 2001-2002 to 17 (89.5%) in 2002-2003. 

There is a significant drop in the submission rate of the

training reports in the Technical College (FET)

constituency, from 27 (61.4%) in 2001-2002 to 13 (29.5%)

in 2002-2003. These figures are expected to inflate, as

data captures are still busy with some files for the above

period.

The DoEs submitted the training plans for the

consecutive years, that is between the period 2001-2002

to 2003-2004 (33,3%); the National Department of

Education (NDoE), the Eastern Cape, Western Cape,

Limpopo, KwaZulu Natal, North West and Gauteng

provinces came second with only two submissions

across the three periods of submissions. 

Sector Skills Planning process

Various constituencies took part in the Focus Groups

sessions which were part of the division’s approach in

qualitative research methods for the SSP. In all 10

constituencies took part in these sessions. There was a

problem in that there were constituencies that were

over represented while others were poorly represented.

There has also been engagement with the ETDP SETA

governance structures in defining and confirming some

of the reports and strategy approaches and

prioritisation for the sector.

The CSS has compiled the report on the data derived

from the following sources to feed on the SSP:

• Labour Force Survey on Education, Training and

Development (i.e. September 2002 and March 2003)

• Snap survey on education sector 2001 (i.e.

Ordinary Public Schools, FETs, ABET Centres,

LSEN Centres, ECD Centres and Independent

Schools)

• Breakdown in Public Schools by sex for 2001

• Headcount of Personnel with Permanent

Appointments according to personnel category,

racial/ethnic identification and sex for the year

2002 in Higher Education

• Compilation of a report by the HSRC on the profile

and the demand and supply within the sector

• Constituency Service Plans

Challenges (2003/4)

• There is a need for a more strategic intervention at
senior management level within the DoEs so as to
have enough support to assist the overall skills
approach. 

• The disparity in terms of budgetary allocations for
implementation within the sector has to be
balanced to assist the smooth working
relationship of the SETA and all its constituencies. 

• Developing workable strategies to integrate skills
needs of the fragmented education sub-sectors in
a logical and lucid way

21

CONSTITUENCY SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION



• Many employers do not participate in the 

skills development process because of lack 

of understanding, lack of capacity or lack of

interest. The available human resource and

financial capacity is not yet adequate to reach 

out to all corners of the country. Many are

disenfranchised, and are unable to pay levies 

and keep track of requirements. They are excluded

from the framework of assistance 

and benefits

• Some Departments of Education have fragmented

and complex arrangements for professional and

skills development. There are so many sources of

funding for training and so many units involved

that it is difficult to orchestrate skills

development into a unified trust

• SDF’s are not properly prepared to undertake

their responsibilities, and many are not properly

located within their respective organisations 

to provide transformational leadership 

to the workplace skills development process

• Many of the employers in the sector, because 

they are SMEs, do not have the capacity 

to appoint dedicated SDFs to facilitate 

skills development processes within their

workplaces

Prospects

• ETDP SETA to have provincial/regional offices in

order for constituencies to access information

more easily. Establish regional/provincial

committees in order to have forums to engage in

SETA activities and to strengthen communication

with constituencies

• Development and finalisation of an HIV/AIDS

strategy for member organisations and an SME

Skills Development strategy
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Profile

Since its inception in March 2003, the ETDP SETA's

Grants Management Unit has been mainly responsible

for managing and processing the mandatory and

discretionary grants used to implement skills

development programmes in the Education, Training

and Development (ETD) sector.

Mandatory grants have been paid to assist members in

completing their Workplace Skills Plans (WSPs) and

Annual Training Reports (ATRs).

Discretionary grant funding is provided to complement

existing training initiatives, to expand opportunities for

marginalised individuals, and to plug gaps in training in

the workplace where national transformation priorities

need to be addressed.

The discretionary grants have given the SETA's levy-

exempt members  an opportunity to actively participate

in the skills development revolution.

In both forms of grant funding, the member

organisations work in collaboration with Constituency

Support Services (CSS) Division.

Achievements (2003/4)

To date, the Grants Management Unit has already

achieved several key objectives in meeting specified

NSDS targets. 

Integral to this success has been the work of the

Discretionary Grants Unit, which was established in

March 2003 with a clear mandate to fast track the

disbursement of the 2003/4 roll-over funding. 

The funding was spread over 12 identified funding

programmes based on the needs highlighted in the initial

Sector Skills Plan. 

Of the 1 081 contracts sent out, 910 contracts have been

returned for disbursement. The first disbursement was

made in June 2003 and by the end of March 2004, 40% of

the available funding had been disbursed across 

12 constituencies.

Funding Programmes

The categories of each sub-sector funding programme

are as follows:

Research for Constituency Service
Planning

This involves projects examining the performance,

productivity and delivery of various programmes,

including the implementation of WSPs as well as the

feasibility of various collaborative efforts. There is a

strong focus on establishing a clearer link between

training, performance and productivity and on boosting

delivery within specific sub-sectors.

Research and Impact Studies

Initiatives in this programme are aimed at enhancing the

workplace skills development process. They include

impact studies on HIV/AIDS, ECD, ABET and

Community Development - and on the effect of SETA

interventions on employer and employee productivity. 

Research studies focus on the labour market dynamics of

various sub-sectors as well as on obstacles and delays in

the supply and demand chain. The priority objective is to

speed up the flow of skills and qualifications in each sub-

sector.

A comprehensive study aimed at designing a process to

assess the impact of SETA interventions on an ongoing

basis is in the pipeline.

23

GRANTS MANAGEMENT

GRANTS MANAGEMENT



Learning Programmes for Enterprises
and Organisations

This area focus on training programmes in Management

and Leadership; IT; HIV/AIDS as well as SDF; ECD

Practitioner and ABET Training.

SDF Capacity Building

This programme funds training programmes for SDFs

and other key staff participating in the Workplace Skills

development process. Priority is given to training that is

directly related to workplace skills development.

Funds have been provided for SDFs to develop effective

skills in management, evaluation and assessment,

communication and report writing, coordinating

programme planning, computer literacy and

information management.

Quality Management Systems
Development (QMS), Moderator and
Assessor Training

This programme has been used primarily for QMS and

Moderator training. Particular consideration are given to

organisations that are located in - and are providing

services to - rural areas, disadvantaged geographic areas,

or other marginalised communities. Assessors,

moderators and mentors are also being trained for

implementing learnerships.

Learnerships

These were targeted at Level 6 educators (General

Certificate in Education) and Level 5 educators (BED) in

schooling; ABET and ECD Practitioners at Levels 4 and

5; HE Practitioners at Level 7 and OD ETD Practitioners

at Level 5.

The SETA has prioritised R15 million towards the

implementation of SETA funded learnerships. Since

2002, 58% has been disbursed, while the SETA has also

committed R81 million for the implementation of NSF

funded learnerships. 

In the financial year under review, 38% was disbursed

towards SETA funded learnerships, with a high level of

commitment promised for the new financial year. The

detailed statistics are given in  the Learnership and Skills

Programme Division segment of this annual report.

Strategy to reach small ECD
Organisations

The emphasis has been on formulating strategies to

support small organisations to develop workplace skills

development plans and to enhance their capacity to

deliver workplace skills development.

The programme has also included research on the issues

that prevent small and micro enterprises from

participating in workplace skills development processes.

It also provided support and technical assistance to

enable SMEs to prepare and implement WSPs - as well as

support in mobilising and recruiting SMMEs to register,

to enable them to benefit from the services and support

of the ETDP SETA.

Tracking and Tracing System for
Graduates of Learnerships

The goal here has been to develop a comprehensive

computerised system that would provide an effective

management process for keeping track of graduates.

Service Provider Development

This programme provided technical assistance to small
organisations to prepare them for accreditation, as well
as funding for partnership projects in which established
organisations serve as coaches and mentors in
developing their peers.

It also included an analysis of service provision by sub-
sectors; a geographical analysis of providers'
availability; training of assessors in learnerships;
training of providers in management, learnerships,
marketing and in other areas which would enhance their
performance.

Development of HRD infrastructure

This concentrated on technical assistance programmes to
support organisations in developing systems and
processes that would enhance the workplace skills
development process.
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These programmes include the development of

appropriate training information management systems

to support workplace skills development as well as the

development of handbooks, guidelines or policies for

integrating HRD processes. 

HIV/AIDS Strategy and Research 

The SETA has placed a particular emphasis on

programmes that address HIV/AIDS-related issues in

the workplace in a holistic manner. These include

HIV/AIDS research and training programmes, as well as

the development of HIV/AIDS strategies and

community development activities 

HIV/AIDS research included specific initiatives such as

an impact study on the trends, magnitude and effects of

HIV/AIDS in the paraplegic community in the

Mpumalanga Province, and the management of

HIV/AIDS amongst tertiary institutions in the Eastern

Cape.

Research would also be undertaken on managing

HIV/AIDS in the workplace and on the impact of

HIV/AIDS among ECD educators in Gauteng and

Eastern Cape.

HIV/AIDS training will focus on aspects such as home-

based care, HIV/AIDS peer education and counselling

and HIV/AIDS awareness programmes. Community

development activities would include counselling, care

programmes and home-based care initiatives.

Training-related handbooks on managing the

organisational impact of HIV/AIDS would be provided,

in addition to materials or best policies and practices in

managing organisational responses to the pandemic.

Modules and workshops would also be organised to

foster sensitive and supportive work cultures in

handling the HIV/AIDS crisis.

Community-based Projects

The focus here has been on the training of youth work

professionals and volunteers for community

development work - as well as on individuals in ETD

organisations to enable them to work more effectively.

Technical assistance would be sought from qualified

service providers who can add value to projects that are

currently in operation or in the pipeline. Arrangements

would be made to provide community development

training and support to SMMEs.

Discretionary Grants 
Beneficiaries

The following individuals and constituencies benefited

from the 40% disbursed under discretionary funding

during the year. 

Higher Education Institutions

This constituency includes all universities and

technikons currently undergoing a restructuring process.

Of the 26 contracts received, 27% have been disbursed to

date and 138 individuals have benefited from

interventions.

These interventions include Assessor and Moderator

Training; HIV-AIDS research and strategies; Research

and Impact Studies; Management and Leadership

Training and ABET Facilitator training.
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Public Further Education and Training
Institutions (FETs) as Employers

The FET constituency includes technical colleges and

newly-created FET colleges. Of these, 53 applied for

funding and 49 contracts have been received, reflecting a

40% disbursement. In all 990 individuals benefited, with

480 males and 510 females receiving training. 

The concentration of the funding has been on skills

training for Assessors, Moderators and Verifiers; ABET and

ECD Practitioners; Skills Development Facilitators and

SMMEs. Training programmes have also been conducted

in Information Technology; Management and Leadership;

HIV/AIDS awareness and Quality Management. 

Early Childhood Development

ECDs are one of the levy-exempt constituencies, from

which 45 applications were approved, with 9% being

disbursed to the benefit of 31 individuals across the

country. 

Trade Unions as Employers

Eight applications were approved from the Trade Union

constituency, with 51% being disbursed for the training

of 411 individuals - 181 females and 230 males.

School Governing Bodies (SGBs) as
Employers

This constituency represents staff employed by the

School Governing Bodies in Public Schools. 

Some 248 contracts were received, with 309 individuals -

91 males and 221 females - benefiting from training as a

result of a 17% disbursement. 

Private Providers

This constituency consists of providers of education,

training and development in the small, medium and

large business categories. 

To date, 183 contracts have been received and 60% have

been disbursed to 4 406 people across the country. In all,

1 688 males (38%) and 2 718 females (62%) were trained.

Independent Schools

There were 91 applications from the Independent

Schools constituency and 56 contracts received, of which

there was a 37% disbursement for training purposes. A

total of 631 beneficiaries - 117 males and 514 females -

were trained.

Non-Governmental Organisations

The NGO constituency is another of the levy-exempt

members, from which 86 contracts have been received

and 45% disbursed for the training of 1 377 individuals -

373 males and 1 004 females.

Political Parties, Libraries, Archives and
Research Organisations

There has been limited participation by these

constituencies due to technicalities relating to the

classification of the libraries, archives and research

organisations. However, there has been a 63%

disbursement to research organisations.

Departments of Education

Departments of Education (DoEs) are eligible for

discretionary grants, given that they are excluded from

receiving mandatory grants. Contracts have been

received from all 10 DoEs and 23% has been disbursed to

380 beneficiaries, of which 217 were males and 163

females.

Challenges (2003/4)

As the Grants Management Unit is relatively new within

the ETDP SETA structure, it was obliged to start from

scratch in setting up systems and procedures to ensure

that it adhered to the Public Finance Management Act

and effectively serviced its constituent members. Despite

its considerable achievement in disbursing 40% of the

R74 million rolled over to 2003/2004 for discretionary

grants, the department faces a number of challenges

going forward. 

Among these are the shortage of accredited providers in

some provinces; the lack of automation in SETA

processes; the re-scheduling of training initiatives by
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organisations and delays in completing contracts

between the organisations and the SETA before

disbursements can be made.

Other obstacles to be overcome are the slow submission of

Portfolios of Evidence after training is completed - as well as

of WSPs and ATRs - and the high staff turnover in the Grants

Unit due to temporary employment contracts.

Problems are also being encountered in the

misinterpretation by some constituent members of the

purpose and nature of discretionary funding and the

adhoc manner in which contributions from government

departments are being transferred to the SETA.

Prospects

During the new financial year, the Unit is determined to

make further tangible progress on a number of

challenges. Focus areas will  include recruitment and

staff retention issues as well as the tightening up of

training contracts. 

There will be a particular emphasis on fast-tracking 

the second and third phases of training initiatives, using

the balance of the R74 million discretionary funding, as

well as an impact study on grants disbursed to date,

which will be undertaken in collaboration with the

research unit.

The unit will also be completing a Grants Management

Handbook, which will outline the policies and procedures

for both mandatory and discretionary grants.

Effectively implementing the Management Information

System (MIS) will be another priority - as will be the

allocation of another R14 million in discretionary funding.

This additional funding will focus on a number of

priority areas for staff development. These are Assessor

and Moderator Training; Quality Management System

Development; Management and Leadership Training;

Information Technology Training; Skills Development

Facilitator and Skills Development Committee Training.

Distribution of WSPs and ATRs

The department has distributed 6 817 WSPs and ATRs to

its registered levy-paying organisations and is in the

process of also distributing to its 2 000 levy-exempt

organisations.

Skills Development Facilitator
Registration

The department has registered 1 237 Skills Development

Facilitators over the past four years, with 593 registered

between April 2003 and  March 2004.

The capacity building initiatives for Skills Development

Facilitators and Skills Development Committee members

is an integral part of the discretionary funding focus.
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Grants Disbursements

Grant Type Organisation Size and Funds Disbursed Total Grants

Workplace Skills Plan

Annual Training Reports

Learnership Fee

Learnership Allowance

Skills Programme

Totals

0-49

873

25

20

4

327

1249

Value 

(in Rands)

1,841,329

*0

379,095

115,440

16,161,986

18,497,850

50-149

91

9

17

1

32

150

Value 

(in Rands)

238,535

*0

1,356,755

31,200

1,866,189

3,492,679

150+

57

*0

*0

*0

86

143

Value 

(in Rands)

9,911,822

*0

*0

*0

10,010,574

19,922,396

Unknown

237

283

93

*0

9

622

Value 

(in Rands)

2,288,551

29,734,762

3,900,778

*0

*0

35,924,091

Numbers

1258

318

130

5

454

2165

Value 

(in Rands)

14,280,237

29,734,762

5,636,628

146,640

28,038,749

77,837,016

*By March 2004 no ATR had been received



Profile

The purpose of the SETA, through the Learnerships and

Skills Programmes Division, is to develop, register and

make available Learnerships and Skills Programmes that

address the needs of the ETDP SETA member

organisations, and to register and manage learnership

agreements.

The division is staffed by a team of nineteen – a

divisional manager, one personal assistant, two heads of

department, one administration coordinator, eight

project leaders and six administrative staff.

The Learnerships and Skills Programmes Division is

currently made up of two main departments, viz.

Education and Occupationally Directed Training and

Development Sector Departments. Both departments

have a mission of ensuring delivery against NSDS targets

and the Sector Skills Plan.

Achievements

The divisional staff team as outlined in the business plan

is recruited, developed, supported and appraised in

accordance with the Performance Management

Development Strategy of the ETDP SETA.

Learnerships Registered To Date

The Learnerships and Skills Programmes Division has

further registered five learnerships on top of the eight

previously registered and this totals thirteen learnerships

registered by the ETDP SETA with DoL.
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NEW REGISTRATION REGIS-
LEARNERSHIPS NUMBER TRATION
REGISTERED DATE

Administration and 

Finance NQF Level 3 07Q070021311433 2004

Post Graduate Certificate 

in Higher Education 

& Training NQF Level 7 07Q07305000127 2003

Development Practice 

NQF Level 5 07Q070023151205 2004

Development Practice 

NQF Level 1 07Q070022221201 2004

Occupationally Directed 

ETD NQF Level 4 07Q070004151334 2004



Table Below:  
Breakdown by constituency of all learners
including new entrants of 2004.
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CONSTITUENCY LEARNER- DURATION NO OF
SHIP TITLE LEARNERS

ABET Abet Level 4 1 year 200

Abet Level 5 2 years 435

ECD ECD Level 4 2 years 180

ECD Level 4 2 years 80

SCHOOLING Level 6 B Ed 4 years 855

Level 6 PGCE 1 year 369

Level 5 NPDE 2 years 300

PRIVATE OD ETD Level5 2 years 152

PROVIDER

2571



Graduations

ABET L4 and 5 Graduations:

The first group of 17 ABET NQF level 5 unemployed

(18.2) learners graduated in the Free State nodal zone,

Qwa-Qwa, from the learnership on the 2 April 2004.

Their employer, Free State Youth Commission,

organised the graduation. The table below is the

breakdown of the graduates:

L6 Educators in Schooling Graduations:

The first graduation ceremony was after the first intake

of 2001, of which 20 learners out of the 40 actively

participating learners graduated in 2002. The second

graduation was for the 2003 intake of 384 learners of

which 45 PGCE learners graduated. For the B. Ed only

7 learners have graduated to date as some are still on

their second, third and final year. The table below

shows the breakdown: 

Partnerships with Government and
Provincial Departments, Public and
Private Entities

All DoE Provincial departments have committed to

support ABET learnerships and some are funding ABET

learnerships through their Skills Development

Committees (SDC) and three provinces

(KwaZuluNatal, Mpumalanga and Eastern Cape) have

already budgeted for the implementation of ABET NQF

Level 4 and 5 learnerships. The table below outlines

their plans and commitments:

Other partnerships
• Umsobomvu Youth Fund for the implementation

of Community Research Skills Programmes for

100 young people from the nodal areas. They have

since completed their training

• KZN DoE on the NPDE L5 learnership for 300

underqualified learners and training has begun. 

• DoE ECD, ABET directorates with regard to the

recruitment of learners

• Independent and private schools that are

participating in the Educators in Schooling

learnership
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PROVINCE LEARNER- NO. OF EMPLOYMENT CURRENT 

SHIP LEARNERS STATUS STATUS

KZN ABET NQF 85 18.2 Learners have  

Level 5 (unemployed) been registered 

and training is

about to start.

E. Cape ABET NQF 110 18.1 Training started 

Levels 4 (employed) in July 2003.   

and 5 Level 4 learners

are currently

undergoing 

assessment. 

Mpumalanga ABET NQF 60  18.2 Learners have

Level 5 (unemployed) been registered 

40 18.1 and training 

(employed) is about to start.



Challenges

• Provincial co-ordination of learnerships and skills

programmes

• Ensuring that more learners with disabilities are

brought on board the learnership in order to meet

the NSDS objective of 4% by March 2005

• There is a shortage of Accredited Training

Providers for ODETD and Development

Practices Leanerships, particularly the emerging

providers

• Identifying and training suitable workplace

assessors and mentors for learners 

• Terminating learnership agreements due to

allowances paid by the ETDP SETA

• Accrediting providers for the full qualification

since most providers have been accredited for the

Core and/or the Electives

• Implementation of Skills Programmes remains

one of the key challenges

• Involving the private sector, especially the

Corporate Social Investment initiatives

Prospects

There are a number of significant milestones that could

be reached in order to make a significant impact in

reducing skills shortages in the sector:

• Addressing the acute shortage of qualified

practitioners across all the sectors

• The expanded public work programmes will

inevitably increase the demand for the ETD

learnerships

• The government’s commitment to rid itself of

illiteracy means that the demand for ABET

Practitioners Learnerships will increase

• The utilisation of Employment Skills

Development Lead Employer (ESDLE).

• Increasing the number of service providers for

learnerships as most of the areas do not have

accredited providers

• Finalisation of skills programmes strategy will

bring to the SETA dual complimentary

implementation processes for the coming year

• Professionalisation of community workers

through training will contribute not only to the

communities but will assist government

departments and development agencies that

employ community workers

• Reducing poverty and creating sustainable

employment opportunities for different

communities

• Registration of level 1 learnerships in ECD and

ABET
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Profile

The ETDQA Division's primary focus is to assist the ETDP

SETA to fulfill the quality assurance roles and

responsibilities set out by the South African Qualifications

Authority (SAQA) in the ETD economic sector.

The application of quality assurance within the sector

advances the objectives of the National Qualifications

Authority. In so doing, the ETDQA continues to maintain

a number of core values.

Among these, it assists providers to build capacity and

improve quality, it protects the interests of constituent

providers and learners, and it ensures commitment to the

National Skills Development Strategy.

The Division also aims to communicate effectively with

stakeholders and to safeguard the credibility of the

National Qualifications Framework (NQF).

SAQA's mandate to the ETDQA Division embraces a

number of key tasks. The Division is entrusted with

accrediting and certificating constituent ETD providers

for specific standards or qualifications registered on the

NQF, and with promoting quality amongst constituent

providers.

It also monitors provision by constituent providers and

registers constituent assessors for specific registered

standards or qualifications in terms of established

criteria.

The ETDQA Division also assumes responsibility for the

certification of constituent learners. Among its various

duties, it co-operates with the relevant body or bodies

across ETQAs, recommends new unit standards and

qualifications, and reviews and makes amendments to

existing standards and qualifications for the National

Standard Body (NSB).

The division also maintains a database acceptable to

SAQA, to which it also submits reports in accordance

with the requirements of the Authority.

The ETDQA is also playing an integral role in the quality

assurance of Generic Assessor unit standards, which have a

direct effect on other ETQAs in supplying qualified

assessors and moderators for registration, and the

establishment of good assessment practices in other sectors.

In implementing its mandate, the ETDQA is continuing

to lay the foundation for a coherent, progressive pattern

of quality assurance standards, as well as helping to

shape clearly-defined learning pathways to achieve

registered unit standards and qualifications within the

SETA's primary focus.

Achievements

Significant accomplishments were realised by the

Division during the 2003/2004 fiscal year. Notably, there

was a substantial increase in the number of accredited

constituent education and training providers.

The number of accredited constituent providers grew

significantly from 68 to 160 in the past financial year - an

increase of 135.3%.

Of these, 106 (66.25%) of providers attained full

accreditation status, with the remaining 54 (33.75%)

achieving provisional accreditation. A total of 37 (40.66%)

of the 91 providers who were initially granted

provisional accreditation have since complied with the

conditions of accreditation and their status has been

elevated from provisional to full accreditation.

The Division received 154 applications for accreditation

in 2003/04, compared to 98 applications in the previous

financial year - a 57.14% increase. The cumulative

number of applications for accreditation had reached 252

as at 31 March 2004.
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The total of 160 accredited providers broken down by
province was: Eastern Cape 11 (06.875%); Free State 07
(04.375%); Gauteng 82 (51.25%); Limpopo 06 (03.75%);
Mpumalanga 14 (08.75%); Northern Cape 02 (01.25%);
North West 01 (0.625%); Western Cape 18 (11.25%); 
Kwa-Zulu Natal 19 (11.875%).

The ETDP SETA provided constituent providers with a
range of support services before, during and after
accreditation.

Unaccredited providers were targeted through
accreditation workshops conducted by the Provider
Development and Quality Promotion Department

In addition, workshops on National Learner Record
Database Specifications and on the use of the ETDP SETA
automated Learner Registration and Achievement
Upload System were conducted for accredited providers.

The 160 providers so far accredited by the ETDP SETA

have come from the Small, Micro and Medium

enterprises category. No large organisations applied for

accreditation with the ETDQA Division during the

period under review.

Of SMEs in the Micro and Small category (1-49

employees), 156 (97,5%) were accredited. In the medium

category (50-149 employees) four (2,5%) gained

accreditation. No accreditations were recorded in the

large category (150 employees and above).

A total of 271 participants attended provider

development workshops - targeted at unaccredited

providers - in the Presidential Nodal Areas of

Galeshewe, Zululand and Thabo Mofutsanyana.

The main thrust of provider development and quality

promotion is to increase the number and availability of

accredited providers and approved programmes. The

underlying objective is to effectively address the skills

needs of employees in each constituency in all areas.

There is a particular emphasis on rural and

disadvantaged communities and the overall focus is on

ensuring good practice among accredited constituent

education, training and development providers within

the primary focus of the ETDP SETA.

The ETDQA had registered 45 357 learners on the

Quality Assurance of Learner Achievement MIS

Database Solution as at 31 March 2004.

Of these, 29 261 had not completed their learning while
16 096 learners had been assessed and their learner
achievements endorsed. These learners were issued with
statements of results for certification purposes. A total of
12 805 (79.55%) learner achievements endorsed were for
the generic assessor unit standards.

The ETDP SETA has registered 691 constituent assessors
to date. The proportion of registered female to male
assessors in percentage terms is broadly equal - 48.77%
women as against 51.23% men.

In another development, the ETDQA has entered into
Memoranda of Understanding (MOUs) with 16 SETA
ETQAs - a mandatory requirement by SAQA - to ensure
a seamless accreditation process for providers seeking
accreditation with ETQA bodies. The ETDQA has also
evaluated 191 learning programmes from providers
accredited by other SETA ETQAs. Signing of MOUs is in
process with eight SETA ETQAs and statutory
professional bodies.

The ETDQA has successfully applied to SAQA to extend
the scope of quality assurance to include new
qualifications and unit standards registered on the NQF.
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SAQA has extended the accreditation of the Education,
Training and Development Practices Sector Education
and Training Authority (ETDP SETA) to include two
additional qualifications and unit standards, which are
registered on the National Qualifications Framework as
follows:

• Development Practices NQF level 1, 4 and 5
• Environmental Educational Practices NQF level 

4, 5 and 6

In order to ensure good practice for provider
accreditation process and stakeholder participation, the
ETDQA Joint Standing Committee is responsible for final
ratification of evaluations and recommendations for
accreditation of individual constituent providers.

The ETDQA JSC has been successful in bringing together
all key role-players and stakeholders to safeguard the
interests of providers, learners and employers, and in
upholding the principles of the NQF.

Challenges

The significant achievements recorded by the ETDQA

Division in 2003/2004 have posed a number of

challenges. Many lessons were learnt in the process,

which will go a long way towards ensuring that the

division puts proper mechanisms and intervention

strategies in place to provide optimum service to

constituent providers and learners in the ETD sector.

The Division's prime challenge is to ensure that there are

significant proportions of accredited constituent

providers in all provinces. This, in turn, will ensure that

learners and employers have access to accredited

providers from their provinces, thus obviating the need

to import providers from other provinces.

However, provider unreadiness to offer Recognition of Prior

Learning (RPL) services remains a major challenge within

the ETD sector. Few accredited providers currently have the

capacity and resources to conduct RPL assessments.

Another challenge lies in the building of capacity for

rural-based unaccredited and marginalised providers.

This requires a collective commitment, effort and

integrated strategy among all divisions within the SETA,

in order to increase the number of accredited providers

in rural communities and Presidential Nodal Areas.

The significant increase in the number of accredited

constituent providers also poses a serious challenge 

for the ETDQA. These providers have to be 

continuously monitored, to ensure that quality learning

is provided within the sector and that learners are

protected from unscrupulous providers who may

compromise quality.

The escalating cost of evaluating programmes from
providers accredited by other ETQAs has been another
challenging factor, due to the high number of requisitions
for learning programme evaluations received from
secondary ETQAs. This has placed a heavy burden on
financial resources because of the considerable costs
incurred in employing the services of external
programme evaluators, who are contracted by the hour.

Prospects for 2004/2005 Fiscal Year

The ETDQA Division has adopted a developmental
rather than a punitive approach to the accreditation of
constituent providers and for enhancing quality
provision amongst providers. The Division will continue
to provide assistance and support to accredited providers
and those seeking accreditation with the ETDP SETA.

The development of key criteria and guideline
documents will go a long way to assisting providers to
improve quality and to ensure standardised practices
across providers within the ETD sector. These focus on
guidelines for Assessment and Moderation as well as for
Recognition of Prior Learning - and criteria and
guidelines for Monitoring and Auditing. 

Strengthening collaborative initiatives with role-players
and stakeholders, with the aim of reaching rural
providers and increasing the number of accredited
providers in all provinces, will remain a priority for the
2004/2005 financial year.

Furthermore, the upgraded ETDQA MIS Database Solution
will assist in solving problems of manual uploading of
massive learner data from providers. The upgraded provider
upload system will append new data automatically, thus
solving the problem of manual data capturing.
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Profile

The Corporate Services Division is made up of four

departments. These comprise: Human Resources (HR);

Information Technology (IT); Payroll; and Operations

Administration which provides support to all the

divisions of the ETDP SETA.

During the past year, the Corporate Services Division has

made significant progress in several areas.

Human Resources

• The development and approval by the Board of 

the following Human Resources policies: the

Human Resource Development Policy, the

Employment Equity Policy, the Employee 

Wellness Policy, the Cellphone Policy and the Travel

Policy

• The establishment and implementation of the HRD

Policy by the HRD committee

• The development of job profiles for all positions in

the SETA

• The creation of additional posts to meet staffing

requirements

• The establishment of an internal Payroll Department

• The recruitment of at least 12 organisations to

participate in the Investor in People standard

Information Technology (IT) 

• The Information Technology unit was established in

2003. Its main purpose is to manage the corporate

network infrastructure. The unit's task is to ensure

that the organisation experiences minimum

downtime and to provide user support to the entire

SETA.

• The successful implementation and monitoring of

the firewall and anti-virus software ensured that the

SETA was unaffected by outbreaks of computer

viruses during this period.

• The support and expansion of the existing IT

infrastructure to accommodate additional staff and a

new office block was successfully completed in 2003.

An intern was taken on in the IT Department in

August 2003 to develop the appointee's practical

skills and knowledge.

• Future challenges include the implementation of the

Management Information System (MIS) for the

entire ETDP SETA to ensure compliance in the

reporting and management of information. The

scoping exercise has been completed and the SETA's

requirements have been identified.

• The IT unit, together with the Communications

Department, oversaw the successful revamping of

the ETDP SETA website. An Intranet for internal

staff use was also successfully launched in

December 2003.

Operations Department 

The Operations Department consists of the Head of

Department, the Purchasing Coordinator, an Operations

Administrator, two office assistants and the receptionist.

Two vacant posts - a travel coordinator and a driver - are

to be filled to reduce the cost of administration and

operations within the ETDP SETA.

With the co-operation of the Finance Division, the

Department has implemented a new computerised

purchase order system, on which all staff have been

trained.

The Department is presently reviewing procurement

processes within the SETA to enable it to comply with the

new National Treasury regulations. Various Divisions are

being assisted by the Operations Department to interpret

and implement the Treasury regulations. 

To accommodate the increased staff complement,
additional space was leased in a separate 
building within the office park. The development of
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1

0

2

0

0

3

1

7

11

0

17

1

4

2

1

0

1

0

12

7

1

5

20

2

1

0

2

95

8

11

51

23

2

95

Ceo

Divisional Managers

HOD

Pr Practitioner

Co-ordinators

Research Officers

Grant Portfolio Officers

Senior Accountant

Accountant

Secretariat Services

Material Developer and Facilitation Specialist

Communications Officer

Skills Advisors

Learnerships Advisors

IT Technician

Evaluators

Administrators

Assistant Administrators

Senior Clerks

Receptionist

Office Assistant

Total Permanent Employees

SMT

Professionally Qualified Experience Specialist

Skills Technical and Academically Qualified Workers

Semi-skilled and Defined 

Decision-Making

Unskilled and Defined 

Decision-making

Total Permanent Employees

FEMALE MALE

ETDP-SETA BLACK      COLOURED      INDIAN           WHITE            BLACK      COLOURED       INDIAN          WHITE            TOTAL

ETDP-SETA Staff Levels as at 31 March 2004
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conference facilities on the premises enabled the 
SETA to save money on the use of external 
conference facilities. The saving made from the conference
facilities offsets the costs of the entire 
new leased space. 

In a bid to make the ETDP SETA more cost effective, the
Operations Department is initiating various cost saving

measures - for example, the monitoring and reporting of
telephone costs per individual and Division.

The SETA's lease expires at the end of July 2005.
Accordingly, the SETA is conducting a survey to ascertain
its space requirements ahead of a decision by the 
SETA's board on the choice of a new location for the
organisation.

CORPORATE SERVICES
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SAKHISIZWE PROJECT

Profile

Sakhisizwe Project is a strategic project funded by the

Department of Labour and is focussing on skills

development in the twenty-one Presidential Nodal

Areas of SA as endorsed by the Board of the ETDP Seta.

The Presidential Nodal Areas are those areas mostly

marked by poverty in SA. SA is faced with both urban

and rural poverty and therefore the announcement in

1998 by the President of these areas was a milestone in

concentrating the efforts of all development and

government agencies to combat poverty in the Nodal

Areas. The Presidential announcement allocated eight

areas as Urban Renewal Programme (URP) and thirteen

areas as the Rural Integrated Sustainable Development

Programme (ISRDP).

The URP and the ISRDP is managed by the Department

of Provincial and Local Government (DPLG) and

therefore all development in the Nodal areas are

directly linked to the improvement of municipal service

delivery to the poor people. As the custodian of

improved service delivery to the peoples of SA the

DPLG can play a meaningful role in ensuring that all

activities in the Nodal Areas are mainstreamed,

identified and expressed by people through their

Integrated Development Plans (IDPs).

The Sakhisizwe Project is a National Skills Fund (NSF)

strategic project undertaken for the ETDP SETA to

drive demand-driven skills development across the

country. 

The project was initiated in 2002 - with full

implementation beginning in late 2003 - and is currently

entering the final year of its three-year agreement with

the Department of Labour.

Objectives

The Sakhisizwe Project endorses the objectives and

methodologies of the Urban Renewal Project (URP) and

the Integrated Sustainable Rural Development

Programme (ISRDP) and aims to enhance the efforts of

the National Government in ‘pushing back the frontiers

of poverty’. 

"Sakhisizwe Project aims to enhance and build the

capacity of training providers to provide quality

learnerships and skills programmes to the communities

of the 21 Nodal Municipalities, that can lead to their

sustainable livelihood and life long learning."

Purpose Statement of the Sakhisizwe Project:

• Sakhisizwe Project aims to pursue its strategic

objectives within its legislative framework

• Enhancing the process of providing basic services

delivery (particularly in education and in areas in

which NGOs and CBOs play a meaningful role) to

communities

• Provide learners with quality structured learning

together with work experience to enable learners

to achieve credits on the NQF and to make

learners more employable 

• Sakhisizwe will aim to work towards the

sustainability of its projects and learning

interventions to carry on beyond its interventions

(ie. Build the capacity of local government to plan,

manage and monitor learning interventions)

• Employing and building the skills of the staff of

the Sakhisizwe Project to become expert

implementers of learning interventions

SAKHISIZWE PROJECT



Outcomes

Learnerships were proposed in three strategic areas,

Early Childhood Development (ECD), Adult Basic

Education and Training (ABET) and Community

Development.  These learnerships respond to skills

needs identified in the National Skills Development

Strategy, the ETDP Sector Skills Plans and Workplace

Skills Plans submitted by constituent members. National

stakeholders, having participated consultative processes,

support the proposed learnerships.  The learnerships are

funded for learners who are unemployed or

underemployed and earning very little in CBOs.

Interventions

The learning interventions will involve a number of role

players. These include employers to ensure that

learners have access to work experience to put them in

a better position to find jobs. In addition, the experience

of credible and accredited training providers will be

used to build up the capacity of smaller providers.

Learners - the unemployed and the under-employed -

will be drawn from the ABET, ECD, NGO and CBO

sectors.

The project currently has nine staff members, overseen

by a project manager. He is responsible - among other

duties - for fast-tracking the project's implementation

and for ensuring that the project office is adequately

staffed and that the appropriate management systems

and procedures are in place.

He also liaises with the Department of Labour and

works to establish partnerships with stakeholders in the

various provinces.

Achievements 

The Project Office has made good progress in

implementing a number of learnerships and skills

programmes:

The Eastern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal have been the

project's main beneficiaries, given that these provinces

have the most Nodal Areas as allocated in the ISRDP and

the URP. However, the project aims to extend

learnerships and skills programmes to other less-

fortunate regions.

Update: 
Learnerships and Skills Programme’s implementation –

March 2004 
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ABET L4 RACE GENDER AGE
PROVINCE LEARNERS A I C W F M -30 30+

KwaZulu 300 300 209 91 201 99
Natal

Western 105 40 65 60 45 65 40
Cape

Kgalagadi 45 30 15 40 5 25 20

Galeshewe 15 15 15 9 6

Gauteng 40 40 35 5 28 12

Eastern  130 130 100 30 80 50
Cape

Sekhukhune 40 40 33 7 30 10

Bohlabela 40 40 35 5 20 20

Dihlabeng 40 40 36 4 25 15

Maluti 40 40 29 11 19 21

Totals 795 715 80 592 203 502 293

ECD LEARNERSHIP L4 RACE GENDER AGE
PROVINCE LEARNERS A I C W F M -30 30+

Eastern 670 670 665 5 272 398
Cape 

Kwazulu  430 430 428 2 238 192
Natal

Northern 40 40 40 16 24
Cape 

North 40 38 2 40 11 29
West 

Gauteng 50 50 49 1 25 25

Western  80 40 40 80 30 50
Cape

Free 90 89 1 90 55 35
State 

Limpopo 50 50 50 35 15

Mpumalanga 50 50 50 26 24

Totals 1500 1457 43 1492 8 708 792
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Challenges and Prospects

The project has additional skills programmes in place 

in ECD, ABET, Community Development, Barriers 

to Learning, HIV/Aids and in Youth Development.

These programmes, which are also aimed at the

Presidential Nodal Areas, will be implemented 

during 2004/5.

The project office - in conjunction with the ETDQA - is
assisting new and developing training providers through
quality assurance mechanisms and workshops which are
being conducted in most provinces.

Once the remaining skills programmes and learnerships
have been implemented, the main focus of the project
will be monitoring of - and support to - learners,
employers and training providers.

MENTOR ASSESSOR RACE GENDER AGE
PROVINCE LEARNERS A I C W F M -30 30+

KwaZulu 366 366 361 5 220 146
Natal 

Eastern  366 366 364 2 163 203
Cape

Western 170 80 90 144 26 90 80
Cape 

Northern 40 40 40 25 15
Cape 

Mpumalanga 40 40 40 20 20

Gauteng 60 60 60 35 25

Free 20 20 38 2 15 5
State 

North 40 40 38 2 15 25
West

Totals 1102 1012 90 1067 35 583 519
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Profile

Prudent financial management and reporting has become

one of the strengths of the ETDP SETA and represents a

critical source of client confidence in the organisation.

The core business of the Finance and Administration

Division centres on the management of divisional

budgets ranging from R4m to R10m. This is undertaken

on behalf of clients who expect the management systems

and reporting to be reliable and accurate.

Within this overall mandate, the Finance Division

continued to provide the necessary support to the ETDP

SETA's divisions during the 2003/2004 financial year. 

Achievements (2003/4)

• The Division managed a substantial increase in

divisional and grant payments during the past

financial year - R151m as opposed to R48m in

2002/03. 

• In order to retain this competitive advantage, the

Division focused on streamlining its operations and

processes to eliminate inefficient procedures and

strengthen internal controls.

• This included an ongoing monitoring and evaluation

of the Division's controlled environment, in the quest

for efficient processes, systems and controls which

comply with relevant legislation as well as generally

accepted accounting practices.

• Monthly financial reporting mechanisms were

established with the Finance Committee. Finance

policies and procedures were also reviewed and

approved for implementation by the Board.  

• Full accounting and budgeting functions were made

operational and a business plan and budget were

prepared which reflected the strategic imperatives of

the ETDP SETA. Progress was also made in the

recruitment of middle management.

• Furthermore, continuous review, reconciliation and

verification methods have been adopted to ensure

the accuracy of the Skills Development Levies

received by the organisation.

• In addition, the risk assessment report was reviewed

and finalised. Managers were equipped with the

capacity to recognise, evaluate and address risk areas

that could affect the ETDP SETA financially and

operationally.

• A creditors system was implemented that enables

the ETDP SETA to pay upon presentation of

statement. This has resulted in improved control and

the more effective payment of creditors. The

introduction of an Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)

system has also led to a shorter turnaround time for

payments and a reduction in bank charges.

• Process plans were implemented to effectively

control the flow of funds and grants, while cost

cutting strategies included the integration of

activities amongst the divisions.

Challenges (2003/4)

The ETDP SETA needs to systematically simplify and

improve support processes that seek to contribute to

improved client awareness and cost-effectiveness.

Integral to this, is a focus on better co-ordination between

the different units within the ETDP SETA to ensure that it

works as an integrated group.

The ETDP SETA relies heavily on contributions by the

Department of Education to enable it to perform its

functions. Monthly cash flow forecasts therefore remain a

priority for the Finance Division and will be continuously

reviewed so that resources can be optimally managed. 

The lack of an integrated MIS system has hindered the

ETDP SETA's attempts to streamline its processes to

achieve automation of mandatory grants and other work

flow processes from the Division.

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
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To redress this, an integrated package is being

considered as part of Information Technology's

investigation of a complete MIS system.

Prospects

New development trends are set to offer new

opportunities for the ETDP SETA going forward.

For example, spontaneous network set-ups between

divisions will enhance communication solutions and

enable the Finance Division to provide management

with the level of detail required to manage the budgets of

respective divisions.

Another example is the development of funding

strategies and the implementation of process plans to

effectively control the flow of funds and grants - as well

as strategies to ensure maximum returns from the

training provided by service providers.



SECTOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2004

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2004, set out on pages 45 to 65, have been approved by the

Accounting Authority in terms of section 51 (1)(f) of the Public Finance Management Act 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) on 31

May 2004, and are signed on their behalf by:

Nomlamli Mahanjana - CEO Vincent Maphumulo - Chairperson
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1.  Audit Assignment

The financial statements as set out on pages 45 to 65, for
the year ended 31 March 2004, have been audited in
terms of section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), read with sec-
tions 3 and 5 of the Auditor-General Act, 1995 (Act No. 12
of 1995) and section 14(6)(a) of the Skills Development
Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998). These financial statements,
the maintenance of effective control measures and com-
pliance with relevant laws and regulations are the
responsibility of the accounting authority. My responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments, based on the audit.

2.  Nature and Scope

The audit was conducted in accordance with Statements
of South Africa Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance that the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit includes:
• examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments,

• assessing the accounting principles used and sig-
nificant estimates made by management, and

• evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion.

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on a test
basis, of evidence supporting compliance in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations which
came to my attention and are applicable to financial mat-
ters.

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my
opinion. 

3.  Audit opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Educa-
tion, Training and Development Practices Sector 

Education and Training Authority and its related projects
at 31 March 2004 and the results of its operations and
cash flow for the year then ended, in accordance with
South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP) and in the manner required
by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999
(Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended.

4.  Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying the audit opinion expressed above,
attention is drawn to the following matters:

4.1 Non compliance with Treasury Regulations
• Fraud Prevention Plan: ETDP did not compile a

fraud prevention plan as required by Treasury 
Regulation 27.2.1

• Materiality and significant framework: ETDP did
not compile a materiality and significant frame-
work as required by Treasury Regulation 28.1.5

4.2 Weakness in internal controls
• Asset management: The asset register was incom-

plete and not properly maintained through the
period.

5. Appreciation

The assistance rendered by the staff of Education, Train-
ing and Development Practices Sector Education and
Training Authority during the audit is sincerely appreci-
ated.

N Manik
for Auditor-General
Pretoria
26 July 2004

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on the Financial Statements of the
Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and Training
Authority (ETDP) and its related projects for the year ended 31 March 2004
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Internal controls and internal audit

The Education, Training and Development Practices
Sector Education Training Authority (ETDP SETA) is
responsible for its internal financial and operational con-
trols. The SETA’s internal controls and systems are
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the
integrity and reliability of the annual financial statements.

The internal audit function is outsourced in the year
under review. Their mandate includes providing inde-
pendent assurances on the effectiveness of control in
terms of their internal Audit Charter and their internal
audit coverage plan as approved by the Audit
Committee. This plan is periodically reviewed by the
Audit Committee so as to ensure that all significant func-
tions, business process and systems will be afforded
internal audit coverage within the three year audit cycle
required by the PFMA. Control weaknesses identified
and recommendations for improvement identified by
internal and external audit receive adequate manage-
ment attention.

Financial Statements

The ETDP SETA is responsible for the preparation of its
annual financial statements. The external auditors are
responsible for the auditing of the annual financial state-
ments and expressing an opinion thereon in executing
their statutory duties. The financial statements are pre-
pared according to generally accepted accounting prac-
tice. The ETDP SETA has complied in all material
respects with the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act 1 of 1999).

The Audit Committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor–General
and the Accounting Authority the audited financial
statements to be included in the annual report

• Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management let-
ter and management response;

• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from
the audit.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclu-
sion of the Auditor-General on the annual financial state-
ments and is of the opinion that the audited financial
statements be accepted and read together with the report
of the Auditor-General.

Conclusion

The Audit Committee, in its opinion, has fulfilled its
obligations as set out both in its Charter and the PFMA.

Yaswant Gordhan
Chairperson: ETDP SETA Audit Committee
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Income Statement 
(Statement of Financial Performance) for the year ended 31 March 2004

Note 2003/04 2002/03
R‘000 R‘000

REVENUE
Skills Development Levy: income 2 151316 127637
Skills Development Levy: penalties and interest 1128 1313
National Skills Fund income 3 12099 1567
Investment income 4 12784 13051
Other income 5 1183 37
Donations for Special Projects 11 7 661

Total revenue 1 178517 144448

EXPENSES
Administration expenses 1/6 (54982) (37092)
Employer Mandatory Grants 1 (82648) (42375)
Discretionary  Grants 1 (71672) (6195)
National Skills Fund expenses 3 (12099) (1567)
Special Project expenses 11 (7) (661)

Total expenses 1 (221408) (88072)
NET (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 1 (42891) 56376

Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) at 31 March 2004

Note 2003/04 2002/03
R’000 R’000

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Funds and reserves

Skills Development Levy: Administration reserve 0 10389
Skills Development Levy: Employer Grant reserve 89610 92330
Discretionary fund reserve 55779 13889

145389 116608
Current liabilities

Skills Development Grants payable 7 76432 71672
Accounts payable 8 8103 1252
VAT payable 9 544 4207
Provision for employee entitlements 10 1197 879
Donor funding received in advance 11 234 219
Levies received in advance 0 2598
National Skills Fund received in advance 3 1428 0

87938 80827
TOTAL NET FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 233327 197435

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 3826 3167
3826 3167

Current Assets
Skills Development Levy Debtors 13 37023 37418
Accounts receivable 14 562 1092
National Skills Fund debtor 3 0 298
Cash and cash equivalents 15 191916 155460

229501 194268
TOTAL ASSETS 233327 197435
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Statement of Changes in Funds for the year ended 31 March 2004

Note Administration Employer Discretionary Total

reserve grants reserve grants reserve

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Balance at 1 April 2002 54465 16464 70929
Changes in accounting policy 49244 11731 60975
Restated balance 54465 65708 11731 131904
Net surplus per Income Statement allocated 10389 26622 19365 56376
Transfer net surplus from prior year  (54465) 54465
Discretionary grants approved but not disbursed (71672) (71672)

Balance at 31 March 2003 10389 92330 13889 116608
Fundamental error 20 71672 71672
Restated balance 10389 92330 85561 188280
Net deficit per Income Statement allocated 1 1124 13744 (57759) (42891)
Transfer net surplus from prior year (10389) 10389
Transfer to discretionary reserve (16464) 16464
Transfer administration surplus to 
discretionary reserve (1124) 1124

Balance at 31 March 2004 0 89610 55779 145389

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2004

Note 2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

Receipts
Skills Development Levy: receipts 147938 111411
Skills Development Levies: penalties and interest receipts 1128 1313
National Skills Fund receipts 3 13825 1265
Donations received 15 219
Interest received 12670 13055
Other receipts 1198 256

Payments
Administration payments (48194) (39176)
Compensation of employees (23036) (12109)
Other (25158) (27067)
Employer Grant and project payments (77889) (48570)
National Skills Fund payments (12034) (1856)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 16 38657 37917
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2273) (1101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 72 0

Net cash outflow from investing activities (2201) (1101)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36456 36816
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15 155460 118644
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 191916 155460



Accounting Policies to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2004

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and are 
consistent with those of the previous year.

1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with and comply with Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (GAAP). The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis. 

2. Revenue recognition

2.1 Levy income

In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), registered member com-
panies of the SETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African Revenue Services
(SARS), who collects the levies on behalf of the Department of Labour. The Department of Education may contribute 
10% of 1% of payroll to skills development.

Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act, 97 (Act No. 97 of 1998)
for the purpose of:

2003/04 2002/03

% %

National Skills Fund contribution 20 20

Administration costs of the SETA 10 10

Employer Grant Fund Levy 60 60

Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning Grant 15 15

Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant 45 45

Discretionary Grants 10 10

100 100

80% of Skills Development Levies are paid over to the SETA (net of the 20% contribution to the National Skills Fund). The
SETA could not verify that the SARS has collected all potential skills levy income.

Revenue recognition of levy income represents amounts received and receivable from the Department of Labour. Skills
development levy revenue is acknowledged on the accrual basis, except for interest and penalties on the skills develop-
ment levy, which is recognised when received. 

Amounts recognised for skills development levies in respect of Administration (10%), the Employer Grants Fund (60%)
and Discretionary Grants (10%) include estimates and accruals for those months for which levy income is not actually
received by year-end due to timing delays. These estimates are based on information received from the Department of
Labour prior to completion of these financial statements. Changes to prior year estimates are accounted for in revenue in
the current period of change. 

Revenue is adjusted for Interseta transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately disclosed
as Interseta transfers. The amount of the Interseta adjustment is calculated according to the Standard Operating Proce-
dure issued by the Department of Labour issued June 2001, taking into account that employers cannot claim employer
grants 18-24 months after the levies have been paid, when the levies are swept to the discretionary fund.
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When a new employer is transferred to the SETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue
and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity, being either to the administration reserve,
employer grant reserve or discretionary reserve. 

Revenue is disclosed net of Value Added Tax. Refer to Note 9 on recognition of Value Added Tax. 

2.2 Funds allocated by the National Skills Fund for Special Projects

The National Skills Fund (NSF) allocates funds in respect of Special Projects to the SETA on an imprest basis (the funds
advanced are topped up once the SETA incurs eligible expenses, i.e. eligible special project expenses incurred are then
reimbursed). If eligible expenses are not incurred, the amount advanced to the SETA has to be refunded to the NSF. 

Funds transferred by the NSF are accounted for in the financial statements of the SETA as a liability until the related eli-
gible special project expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and revenue recognised.

Special Projects

Property, plant and equipment acquired for NSF Special Projects are capitalised in the financial statements of the SETA,
as the SETA controls such assets for the duration of the project. Such assets could however only be disposed of in terms
of agreement and specific written instructions by the NSF.

2.3 Donor income

Conditional grants from donor agencies or individuals are recognised as revenue when received, and where it is proba-
ble that the conditions will be met. 

However,
• if it is probable that a condition will be breached and the asset be returned, or,
• if it is equally probable that the condition will be met or breached and the asset be returned,

then a liability is recognised. In these circumstances, once the conditions have been met, the liability is extinguished and
revenue recognised.

2.4 Interest income

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis as it accrues, unless collectability is in doubt.

3. Grants

A registered company may recover a minimum of 70% of its total levy payment by complying with the following grant
criteria in accordance with the Skills Development Regulations of 22 June 2001:

• Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning Grant:
The employer has submitted an application for a grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period
(Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning Grant) which grant must be equivalent to 15% (2003: 15%) of the total levies paid
by the employer during the financial year; or

• Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant:
The employer has submitted an application for a grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period
(Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant) which grant must be equivalent to 45% (2003: 45%) of the total
levies paid by the employer during the financial year; or
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•  Discretionary Grants:
A SETA may out of any surplus monies determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education and train-
ing providers and workers of the employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the pre-
scribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period. The total pool for discretionary grants is made up of :

• 10% (2003: 10%) of the total levies paid by the employers
• Levy grants that are not claimed by employers
• The surplus of administration levies not utilised to fund administration costs
• Investment income
• Other income generated by the SETA etc. (refer to accounting policy 4.4).

These discretionary grants are approved by the SETA before the relevant training programme, initiative, or research com-
mences in accordance with the Regulations. This results in a significant lapse of time between the time when grant pay-
ments are approved and the time when grant payments become payable. 

Liabilities for the various grant types as set out in the regulations to the Skills Development Act, 1998 
(Act No. 97 of 1998) are accounted for once the specific criteria have been complied with by member companies and such
compliance has been approved by the Constituency Support Services Division. Provision is also made for employer
grants where grant applications have been approved, but not yet disbursed. A contingent liability is disclosed for grant
applications received after year end but which have not yet been through the approval process. This possible obligation
is only confirmed with the approval after lodging of the applications. The contingent liability is disclosed as an estimate
of the amount of grant applications that would probably be approved.

3.1 Provisions for grants 

3.1.1 Mandatory employer grants:

Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning Grant:

This grant is recognised once the specific criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills Development Act, 1998 
(Act No. 97 of 1998) have been complied with by member companies and such compliance has been approved
by the Constituency Support Services Division of the SETA.

Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant:

Based on criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998) the legal
obligation to allocate the Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant only arises once the employer has
submitted an application for a grant in the form prescribed in Annexures to the Regulations. However, as con-
firmed with the Department of Labour on 10 June 2003, the intention with the skills development legislation per-
taining to the Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant has been to implement training initiatives, and
the applicable regulations were amended with Regulation 344, published in the Government Gazette No 24967
of 7 March 2003. Therefore the obligating event to disburse the grant is the actual training and implementation
that is taking place at certain employers during the financial year. 

In addition to applications received, approved and disbursed before year-end, a provision is therefore also made
( notes 1 and 7 ) for the disbursement of the Mandatory Workplace Skills Implementation Grant based on train-
ing plans implemented by certain employers during the year under review, where a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of grant applications that would probably be received, approved and disbursed. The mea-
surement of this obligation involves an estimate, based on the established pattern of past practice of payment of
this type of grant, supported by the history built up over the past two years. 
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3.1.2 Discretionary grants:

No provision is made for discretionary grants payments that have been approved at year-end, unless a present
contractual obligation existed. Such amounts are disclosed as committed funds in note 18.1 to the financial state-
ments.  

3.1.3 Retrospective amendments by SARS:

SARS collects relevant levies from employers, of which the SETA receives 80%. The SETA refunds amounts to
employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS.  Where SARS retrospectively amends the
information on levies collected, it means that grants have been paid to certain employers that are in excess of the
amount the SETA is permitted to have granted to employers. A receivable relating to the overpayment to the
employer in earlier periods is raised at the amount of such grant over payment.

The SETA has a legal right to set off a receivable for the recovery of an overpayment due by an employer against
the provision for grant payments to that employer. The amounts owed by employers for grant overpayments are
therefore set off against the provision for grant payments in the presentation of the balance sheet (separate dis-
closure is made in note 13 to the financial statements). 

Employers’ receivables are not offset against the provision for grant payment to a specific employer, due to rea-
sons including:

• The SETA does not have a legal right to set off amounts, 
• The SETA does not intend to settle net, or 
• The employers involved no longer contribute to the SETA.

4. Reserves

4.1 Unappropriated surplus

Section 53 (3) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 29 of 1999) as amended requires that a SETA may not
accumulate surpluses unless the prior written approval of the National Treasury has been obtained.

There is a time delay of approximately eighteen months to two years before the SETA has granted funds back to employ-
ers or entered into contractually binding agreements where grants become payable to employers, workers of employers
and other education and training providers. It is therefore impracticable to transfer the surplus of a specific year to
National Treasury where these funds would be spent in the short to medium term. 

The following policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements:

While the balance of the unappropriated reserve will be nil, it is used to demonstrate the allocation of various surplus
funds. 

Surplus reserves as calculated below are transferred to the unappropriated reserve.  Where approval for the accumula-
tion of surpluses has been obtained from National Treasury, such amounts are transferred back to the respective reserves,
and the amount of the approved accumulation is disclosed in the statement of changes in funds. The provision for the
transfer to National Treasury of the remaining surplus funds is made from the unappropriated reserve, and is disclosed
in the statement of changes in net funds. This provision results in part of the net funds becoming a liability.

Skills Development Employer Grants Reserve

A provision is raised for the excess of mandatory and discretionary employer grant levies that have not been utilised with-
in two years after the end of the financial year in which such grant levies were accounted for.
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Discretionary Grants Reserve

A provision is raised for the excess of discretionary funds that have not been utilised within one year after the end of the
financial year in which the funds were transferred into the discretionary reserve. The calculation is made on a first-in first-
out basis. 

Disclosure of contingent liability for all reserves

National Treasury may request all surplus funds to be transferred in terms of section 53(3) of the Public Finance Man-
agement Act, 1999 (Act No. 29 of 1999) as amended. A contingent liability is disclosed in the financial statements equalling
the total of all the reserves, after the provision for the distribution of the surplus to National Treasury has been taken into
account.

4.2 Skills Development Administration Reserve

The SETA can use a maximum of 10% of the Skills Development Levies for administration expenses.

The excess of administration grant levies is transferred to the discretionary reserve to be utilised for Special Projects and
skills priorities.

The amount of the reserve represents administration levies not utilised to finance administrative expenses, which has
been approved by National Treasury to be accumulated for the next financial year. 

4.3 Skills Development Employer Grants Reserve

70% of the Skills Development Levies is used for the payment of mandatory and discretionary grants to employers and
others.

In principle the SETA has two years after the end of the financial year in which the levies were accounted for, to effect the
grant payments to employers. 

Employer grant levies not utilised during the above period are transferred to the discretionary reserve any time before
the end of the two years after the end of the financial year in which such grant levies were accounted for. Unutilised
amounts not transferred to the discretionary reserve are included in the amount provided to be transferred to National
Treasury.

The amount of the Skills Development Employer Grants Reserve represents employer grant levies where:
• Less than two years have expired after the end of the financial year in which the levies were accounted for, or 
• Approval has been obtained from National Treasury to accumulate funds for payment of employer grants in

the next financial year.  

4.4 Discretionary Grants Reserve

In principle the SETA has one year after the end of the financial year in which the funds were transferred into the discre-
tionary reserve, to effect the discretionary grant payments. Funds transferred from other reserves gain a new “discre-
tionary” identity when transferred to the discretionary reserve. 
The amount of the reserve includes funds where:

• Less than one year has expired after the end of the financial year in which the funds were transferred into the
discretionary reserve, or

• Approval has been obtained from National Treasury to accumulate funds to the next financial year. 
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The following types of discretionary funds are included in the reserve: 
• Donor income or funds received by the SETA from the Department of Labour, or any contributor for the sole

purpose of carrying out the Special Projects,
• Surplus of administration levies not utilised to fund administration costs, 
• Employer grants levies transferred from the employer grant reserve for discretionary projects, 
• Losses recognised based on SARS retrospective amendments of skills levies,
• Investment income, and
• Other income generated by the SETA.

5. Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation, as the SETA is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax
Act. 

6. Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the Statement of Financial Position include cash and cash equivalents, account and other
receivables, and account and other payables. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of
Financial Position when the SETA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
these instruments are measured as set out below:

Financial assets

The SETA’s principal financial assets are account and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. Account and other
receivables are stated at nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Cash
and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities

The SETA’s principal financial liabilities are account and other payables. Account and other payables are stated at nominal value.

7. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation.  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each asset to their residual values over their estimated useful life. 

The annual depreciation rates used are:
• Audiovisual equipment 20 %
• Computer equipment 33,33 % 
• Kitchen equipment 15 % 
• Leasehold improvements 15 % 
• Office furniture and fittings 15 % 
• Office equipment 20% 

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and
are taken into account in determining operating profit.
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are held
with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and  deposits held at call
with banks.

9. Accounting for leases – where a SETA is the lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the SETA assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the estimated present value of the underlying lease pay-
ments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other non-current lia-
bilities. The interest element of the finance charge is charged to the income statement over the lease period. The proper-
ty, plant and equipment acquired under finance leasing contracts are depreciated over the useful life of the assets.

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.  When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

10. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realisable value.  An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end.  Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified. 

Also refer to accounting policy 3.1.3 relating to receivables recognised based on retrospective amendments of skills levies
by SARS.

11. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the SETA has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is prob-
able that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable esti-
mate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. 

12. Employee entitlements

12.1 Short term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related ser-
vice. Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  A pro-
vision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employ-
ees up to the balance sheet date. The provision has been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary rates. 

12.2 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when the payment is made.
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12.3 Post employment benefit costs

The SETA provides for retirement benefits for all its permanent employees through a defined contribution scheme that is
subject to the Pension Funds Act, 1956, as amended. In terms of the Pension Funds Act, the fund is not required to be actu-
arially valued. Contributions are at a rate of 15% of pensionable emoluments of which members contribute 7,5%. 

12.4 Medical benefits

The SETA provides medical benefits for all its permanent employees through defined benefit plans.  These benefits are
funded by employer and/or employee contributions.  Employer contributions to the fund are expensed when money is
paid to the fund. No provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the SETA. 

13. Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004

1. ALLOCATION OF NET (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR TO RESERVES:

Total per Admini- Employer grants reserve Discretionary grants reserve
Income stration Mandatory Mandatory Discre- Total Projects Skills Total

Statement reserve Skills Skills Imple- tionary priorities discre-
Planning mentation tionary

Grant Grant 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Total revenue 178517 56106 20657 61970 13766 96393 12106 13912 26018

Levy income
Admin Levy income (10%) 54923 54923
Grant Levy income (70%) 96393 20657 61970 13766 96393

Levy: penalties and interest 1128 1128 1128
National Skills Fund revenue 12099 12099   12099
Donations - Special Projects 7 7 7
Investment income 12784 12784 12784
Other income 1183 1183

Total expenses (221408) (54982) (18468) (64181) (82649) (80409) (3368) (83777)

Administration expenses (54982) (54982)

National Skills Fund expenses (12099) (12099)  (12099)
Special Project expenses (7) (7) (7)
Employer grants and project 
expenses per I/S (154320) (18468) (64181) (82649) (68303) (3368) (71671)

Employer mandatory grants 
Disbursed (44015) (13085) (30930) (44015)
Provision for grant (38634) (5383) (33251) (38634)

payments 
Discretionary grants 

Disbursed (33874) (30506) (3368) (33874)
Approved and contracted, (37797) (37797) (37797

not disbursed

Net deficit per Income 
Statement allocated (42891) 1124 2189 (2211) 13766 13744 (68303) 10544 (57759)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

1.1 Losses resulting from incorrect allocations by SARS:

During the year under review, SARS advised the SETA of erroneously designated Skills Development Levies received in
prior periods, resulting in a retrospective adjustment of R2 665 772. This was recognised as a receivable relating to the
overpayment to the employer in earlier periods, and is based on the amount of such grant over payments. No amount
was provided for as doubtful debt/written off and no amount of the employers’ receivable was set off against the provi-
sion for grant payments to specific employers. 

No loss was recognised for the difference between the amount of the retrospective adjustment and the amount that relates
to overpayments to employers in prior periods.

An analysis of the total loss due to SARS irrecoverable reversals  follows:

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Employers’ receivable recognised 2666 0

Loss carried by SETA 0 0

Retrospective adjustments in current year 2666 0

Employers’ receivable recognised:

Provision for doubtful debt 0 0

Amounts written off 0 0

Loss carried by SETA 0 0

Total loss due to SARS irrecoverable reversals 0 0

2. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY INCOME

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

In terms of the Skills Development Act and the 

Skills Development Levies Act, the following applied 

during the period under review:

Percentage of payroll payable as a Skills 

Development Levy 1% 1%
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

The gross levies contributed by member companies i.r.o. the
current year are apportioned as follows:
Administration fund (10%) 62613 54070

Levy Chamber constituents 11984 9867
Budget Chamber constituents 42940 37563
VAT charged on levy income 7689 6640

Discretionary Grants (10%)
Levy income: Discretionary Grants 13766 11196

Employer Grants (60%) 82627 68997
Levy income: Employer Grants 81062 68346
Interseta transfers in 2339 651
Interseta transfers out (774) 0
Withheld by the DoL and paid to the NSF (20%) 27514 33403

Total gross levies contributed by member companies 186520 167666

The total levy income per the Income Statement is as follows:
Levy income: Administration 54923 47444

Levies received 46741 29771
Levies accrued 8182 17673

Levy income: Discretionary Grants 13766 11196
Levies received 10532 8679
Levies accrued 3234 2517

Levy income: Employer Grants 82627 68997
Levies received 64254 54642
Levies accrued 18373 14355

Skills Development Levy income per Income Statement 151316 127637

3. NATIONAL SKILLS FUND: SPECIAL PROJECTS

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Opening balance (298) 0
Received during the year 13825 1269
Utilised and recognised as revenue – conditions met: (12099) (1567)

Learner subsidies (8017) 0
Provider selection (68) (96)
Advocacy and promotion (602) (140)
Administration (3412) (1331)

Closing balance 1428 (298)

During the current year conditional funds of R13 824 451 were received from the National Skills Fund on 5 March 2004
for the purposes of the Sakhisizwe project. This amount was recognised as a liability until the conditions attached were
met. During the year, R12 099 482 eligible project special expenses were incurred and a corresponding amount was recog-
nised as revenue. At year end, R1 428 036 continues to be accounted for as a liability until the remaining conditions
attached have been met.
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4. INVESTMENT INCOME
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000
Interest 12784 13051

5. OTHER INCOME

Other income comprises:
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000
Conference registration fees 563 0
NSF project administration fee 560 0
Other 60 37

1183 37

6. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

The following items have been included in administration expenses:
Note 2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Depreciation 1443 1124
Operating lease rentals 2310 1732
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 99 42
Cost of employment 6.1 24737 12600
Remuneration to members of the audit Committee 16 0
Auditor’s remuneration 184 66
Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer 709 656
Consultancy and service provider fees 5953 6246

6.1 Cost of employment
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Salaries and Wages 22812 11437
Termination benefits 0 34
Social contributions

Medical aid contributions 705 545
Pension contributions: defined contribution plans 725 538
Other staff related costs 495 45

24737 12600

Number of employees 95 66



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

7. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT GRANTS PAYABLE

Note 2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Opening carrying amount 71672 0

Amounts utilised - discretionary 1 (33874) 0

Additional provisions 1 38634 71672

Closing carrying amount 76432 71672

Analysed as follows:
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Applications received by year end 73162 71672

Applications received after year end 3270 0

76432 71672

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Trade payables 4752 916

National Skills Fund special project expenses 2282 0

Other accrued expenses 1069 336

8103 1252

9. VALUE ADDED TAX PAYABLE

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Opening carrying amount 4207 1735

Amounts utilised (5057) (174)

Additional provisions for VAT 1394 2646

Closing carrying amount 544 4207

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the SETA is a VAT vendor. 

The amount reflected as Value Added Tax due to the South African Revenue Service is in accordance with the dispensa-
tion prescribed by the South African Revenue Service on 8 June 2001 and 24 April 2002. In accordance with this Value
Added Tax is only calculated and paid over on:

• Skills Development Levy: Administration (10% portion) 
• Surplus funds on Employer Grant levy (70% portion) used for projects

The Employer Grant levy (70%) that was previously VAT neutral, becomes VATable when the surplus is used for projects.
Therefore the amount of revenue is reduced once the VAT liability is incurred. 

The VAT output tax liability is recognised on funds utilised on projects as far as actual project expenditure has been incurred. 

Refer to notes 1, 2 and 7. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

10. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Employee Employee 2003/04 2002/03

provision provision R’000 R’000
Opening carrying amount                                    554                          325 879 0
Amounts utilised                                                     0                         (325) (325) 0
Additional provisions                                          224                           419 643 879
Closing carrying amount 1197 879

11. DONOR FUNDING RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

2003/04 2002/03
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 219 0
Received during the year 22 880
Utilised and recognised as income – conditions met (7) (661)
Closing balance 234 219

During the year conditional grants funds of R 21 000 were received from EU Funding for the purposes of Assessor training. 

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 31 March 2004

Cost Accumulated Net book Additions Disposals Depreciation Net book 
Depreciation value charge value

2003 2004

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Computer equipment 2660 (1185) 1476 1566 (73) (1008) 1961
Office furniture and fittings 1114 (315) 799 484 0 (212) 1072
Office equipment 684 (149) 535 75 0 (147) 463
Audiovisual equipment 327 (101) 226 5 (88) (42) 101
Kitchen equipment 19 (5) 14 10 (10) (1) 13
Leasehold improvements 126 (8) 117 134 0 (34) 217
Balance at end of period 4930 (1763) 3167 2274 (171) (1444) 3826
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets 4782 (1754) 3028 2209 (171) (1377) 3689
- NSF: Special Project assets 148 (9) 139 65 0 (67) 137
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2003

Cost Accumulated Net book Additions Disposals Depreciation Net book 
Depreciation value charge value

2002 2003

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Computer equipment 1938 (447) 1491 793 (42) (765) 1477
Office furniture and fittings 1054 (155) 899 60 0 (160) 799
Office equipment 536 (24) 512 148 0 (126) 534
Audiovisual equipment 322 (36) 286 5 0 (65) 226
Kitchen equipment 14 (3) 11 5 0 (3) 13
Leasehold improvements 36 (3) 33 90 0 (5) 118
Balance at end of period 3900 (668) 3232 1101 (42) (1124) 3167
Made up as follows:
- Owned assets 3900 (668) 3232 953 (42) (1115) 3028
- NSF: Special Project assets 0 0 0 148 0 (9) 139

The above category includes assets acquired for NSF Special Projects that are controlled by the SETA for the duration of
the special project. Such assets could however only be disposed of in terms of agreement and specific written instructions
by the NSF.

13. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT LEVY DEBTORS

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Administration Levy Debtors 12750 20187

Discretionary Grant debtors 3234 2876

Employer Grant levy debtors 18373 14355

Employers’ receivable related to SARS retrospective adjustments 2666 0

Overpayment of employer grants 2666 0

37023 37418

14. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Other debtors 113 767

Deposits 329 325

Accrued interest 117 0

Prepaid expenses 3 0

562 1092
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Cash at bank and on hand 27278 10376

Short term bank deposits 164638 145084

191916 155460

As required in Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are held. The

weighted average interest rate on short term bank deposits was 8.09% (2003 – 9.92%).

All of the accounts of the SETA are kept at one commercial bank, namely Standard Bank. Management is satisfied that,

due to the standing and credit rating of Standard Bank, the credit risk concentrated by this arrangement is not a matter

of concern.

A policy of utilising more banks in order to spread risk has been adopted from the new financial year.

16. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES TO NET (DEFICIT)/SURPLUS

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Net (deficit)/surplus as per Income Statement (39621) 56376

Adjusted for non-cash items:

Depreciation 1443 1124

Decrease in provisions 0 (249)

Adjusted for items separately disclosed:

Loss on disposal of assets 99 42

Provision for discretionary grants payable 71672 (71672)

Adjusted for working capital changes:

Decrease/(Increase) in levy debtors 395 (18824)

Increase in grants payable 1489 71672

Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable 827 (778)

Increase in accounts payable 2353 226

Net cash inflow  from operating activities 38657 37917



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

17. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities

17.1 Surplus funds

In terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 29 of 1999) as amended, all surplus funds at year-end may

be forfeited to National Treasury.

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Skills Development Administration Reserve 0 10389

Skills Development Employer Grants Reserve 89610 92330

Discretionary Grants Reserve    (note 18.1) 55779 13889

Total funds per balance sheet 145389 116608

18. COMMITMENTS

18.1 Discretionary grant reserve

Discretionary grants are not accrued until a contractual obligation exists, even if applications have been approved at year end.

An amount of R71 672 014 was approved from the discretionary grant reserve at the beginning of April 2003 for future

projects and skills priorities. At the end of March 2004 the balance of R37 796 997 has been committed as set out below.

Of the balance of R55 778 456 available in the discretionary grant reserve at the end of March 2004, R32 900 000 has been

approved for distribution but not yet allocated to projects. 

Discretionary Grants Funding Programme :

R

Further Education 2 147 159

Higher Education 3 152 797

Independent Schools 1 549 575

Private Providers 4 225 375

Trade Unions 2 747 181

Non Governmental Organisations 5 700 946

Libraries 99 000 

Research 380 000

Schools Governing Bodies 3 287 551

Early Childhood Development 3 192 046

Political Parties 214 500

Department of Education 11 100 867

Total 37 796 997
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements at 31 March 2004 (continued)

18.2 Operating Leases

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases:

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Not later than one year 2656 2310

Later than one year and not later than five years 907 3563

3563 5873

The operating leases relate to building premises used for office accommodation.   The first lease agreement was entered

into effective 1 August 2000 and will be operational for a period of five years, expiring on 31 July 2005.  No provision was

made for an option to renew the lease on expiry.  The rental escalates annually on 1 August by 12%. The second lease

agreement was entered into effective 1 March 2003 and will be operational for a period of two years and five months,

expiring on 31 July 2005. No provision was made for an option to renew the lease on expiry. The rental escalates annual-

ly on 1 March by 11%.

19. IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS OR WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

No material losses through criminal conduct, or irregular, fruitless or wasteful expenditure were incurred during the year

ended 31 March 2004.

20. FUNDAMENTAL ERROR

A provision of R71 672 014  was  made in the prior year for discretionary grants payable where funds were allocated but

not contracted. This was contrary to the accounting policy. The provision has been reversed in the current year and open-

ing balances restated. 
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ANNEXURE A: RECONCILIATION WITH CASH INFORMATION PER
ECONOMICAL CLASSIFICATION

2003/04 2002/03

R’000 R’000

Cash receipts 

Non tax receipts:

Skills Development Levy: Fines & penalties 1128 1313

Transfer receipts from: 162961 113230

Other governmental units 

Skills Development levy 147938 111411

National Skills Fund 13825 1563

Public corporations and private enterprises 1198 256

Total cash received from operations 164089 114543

Cash payments

Compensation of employees

Salaries and wages (21245) (11015)

Social contributions (incl. retirement benefits) (1791) (1392)

Goods and services (34867) (26972)

Transfer payments to: (77889) (48570)

Universities, technikons, schools (77889) (48570)

Total cash expenditure from operations (135792) (87949)

Cash generated from operations 28297 26594

Cash receipts 12670 13055

Interest 12670 13055

Cash payments (2310) (1732)

Rent on land (2310) (1732)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 10360 11323

Cash flow from investing activities (2201) (1101)

Cash receipts on sale of capital assets 72 0

Other capital assets 72 0

Cash payments on capital assets (2273) (1101)

Other machinery and equipment (1468) (1015)

Software and other intangible assets (805) (86)

Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 36456 36816



ABET Adult Basic Education and Training
AETASA Adult Education Trainers Association of

South Africa
AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
ALN Adult Learning Network
APPETD Alliance of Private Providers of

Education, Training and Development
ATR Annual Training Report
BC Budget Chamber
CBO Community Based Organisation
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CETA Construction Education and Training

Authority
COE Community Owned Enterprise
COSATU Congress of South African Trade Unions
CS Corporate Services
CSS Constituency Support Services
CTP Committee of Technikon Principals
DoE Department of Education (national)
DoF Department of Finance (national)
DoL Department of Labour (national)
DPLG Department of Provincial and Local

Government
ECD Early Childhood Development
ECDE Eastern Cape Department of Education
EFT Electronic Funds Transfer
ELRC Education Labour Relations Council
ETD Education, Training and Development
EMIS Education Management Information

System
ESDLE Employment Skills Development Lead

Employer
ETDP Education, Training and Development

Practices
ETDA Education and Training Quality Assurer 
ETDQA Education and Training Development

Quality Assurer 
ETQA Education and Training Quality

Assurance 
EXCO Executive Committee
FEDUSA Federation of Democratic Unions of South

Africa
FET Further Education and Training
FIN Financial Administration
FSED Free State Education Department
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
GDE Gauteng Department of Education
GDS Growth Development Summit
GENFETQA General Education and Training, Further

Education and Training Quality Assurer
GETC General Education and Training

Certificate
GTZ Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Technische

Zusammenarbeit
HEQC Higher Education Quality Committee
HIV Human Immune-Deficiency Virus
HOD Head of Department
HR Human Resource
HRD Human Resources Development
HSRC Human Sciences Research Council 
HWSETA Health and Welfare Sector Education and

Training Authority
ICT Information Communications

Technologies
IDP Integrated Development Plan
ISRDP Integrated Sustainable Rural

Development Programme
IT Information Technology
JIP Joint Implementation Plan
JSC Joint Standing Commity
KZNDE KwaZulu Natal Department of Education
L&SP Learnerships and Skills Programmes
LC Levy Chamber
MIS Management Information System
MoU Memorandum of Understanding
MPED Mpumalanga Education Department
NACTU National Council for Trade Unions
NAISA National Alliance of Independent Schools

Association
NAPTOSA National Professional Teachers’

Organisation of South Africa
NCDE Northern Cape Department of Education
NEHAWU National Education Health and Allied

Workers Union
NGO Non Governmental Organisation
NLRD National Learner Record Database
NPDE Northern Province Department of

Education
NQF National Qualifications Framework
NSA National Skills Authority
NSB National Standards Body
NSDS National Skills Development Strategy
NSF National Skills Fund
NTESU National Tertiary Education Staff Union
NUTESA National Union of Technikon Educators of

South Africa
NW North West Department of Education
ODETD Occupationally Directed Education
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Appendix B - List of ETDP SETA Board members

Name Constituency

Dieter Küsel APPETD

Jay Ramnundlall APPETD

Guy Blackbeard APPETD

Marina le Grange CTP

Mark Henning NAISA

Samson Makhado NAISA

Mongoatho Mofokeng SANGOCO

Mahlengi Bhengu COSATU

Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA

Dan Motaung NAPTOSA

Suzanne Rees NAPTOSA

James Taylor NUTESA

Du Toit De Beer NUTESA

Vincent Segwai ALN

Vincent (VB) Maphumulo SADTU

Duncan Hindle National DoE

Jan Hurter Western Cape (DoE)

Takalani Nwedamatuswu Gauteng (DoE)

Mandla Msweli KwaZulu Natal (DoE)

Frank Molelle North West (DoE)

Name Constituency

Clifford Barnes Northern Cape (DoE)

Sipho Sukati Mpumalanga (DoE)

BS Xoseka Eastern Cape (DoE)

Masebina Letele Free State (DoE)

Vernon Nzama Limpopo (DoE)

Lindelwa Dunjwa NEHAWU

Sheila Dipadi NEHAWU

Louw Botha SAUVCA

Nokhanyiso Mantshongo SADTU

Paseka Njobe SADTU

Thulas Nxesi SADTU

Pinky Mncube SADTU

Enoch Rabotapi NAPTOSA

Jake Dikobo NAPTOSA

Dr Ferdinand J Potgieter SAOU

Tello Khodumo SACE

Karen Hinrichs SABPP

Numvuyo Ngwaxaxa NEHAWU

Charlie Molepo NTESU

Training and Development
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PGCE Post Graduate Certificate in Education
PMDS Performance Management and

Development System
QMS Quality Management System
RAU Rand Afrikaans University
RPL Recognition of Prior Learning
SABPP South African Board for Personnel

Practice
SACE South African Council of Educators
SADTU South African Democratic Teachers’

Union
SANGOCO South African Non Governmental

Organisation Coalition
SAOU Suid Afrikaanse Onderwysers Unie
SAQA South African Qualifications Authority
SARS South African Revenue Service 

SAUVCA South African University Vice Chancellors
Association

SDC Skills Development Committee
SDF Skills Development Facilitator
SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
SGB School Governing Body
SME Small and Medium Enterprise
SP&R Skills Planning and Research
SPSS Statistical Package for Social Sciences
SSP Sector Skills Plan
SPSU Strategic Planning and Support Unit
THETA Tourism & Hospitality Education and

Training Authority 
UNISA University of South Africa
URP Urban Renewal Programme
VAT Value Added Tax
WCED Western Cape Education Department
WSP Workplace Skills Plans
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Appendix C - List of Levy Chamber members

Appendix D - List of ETDP SETA HR Committee

Appendix E - List of Budget subsector members

Name Constituency

Pinky Mncube SADTU

Colin Modiboa SADTU

Nkosana Dolopi SADTU

Mpho Mofokeng SADTU

Jonovan Rustin SADTU

Paseka Njobe SADTU

Dan Mahlamonyane NEHAWU

Khanyi Mantshongo SADTU

Sukati Sipho Mpumalanga (DOE)

Ntombi Mxenge Mpumalanga (DoE)

Kedidimetse Motshumi Free State (DoE)

Bertha Kitching Free State (DoE)

Johan Smit Western Cape (DoE)

Linda Rose Western Cape (DoE)

Bulelwa Lusaseni Eastern Cape (DoE)

Khaya Ngaso Eastern Cape (DoE)

Fundile Ngwendu SADTU 

Takalani Nwedamutswu Gauteng (DoE)

Lydia Mathinya Gauteng (DoE)

Sesi Nxesi National (DoE)

Thabo  Mataboge National (DoE)

Maud Dlomo National (DoE)

Name Constituency

Mandla Msweli Kwazulu Natal (DoE) 

Cynthia Khumalo Kwazulu Natal (DoE)

Johan Bouwer SAOU

Roelf Burger SAOU

Franklin Nickall NAPTOSA

Maggy Makgoba NAPTOSA

Pumezo Mhletywa NAPTOSA

Ernest Mboweni NEHAWU

Cedric Mulaudzi NEHAWU

Dan Mavasa LIMPOPO (DoE)

Vernon Nzamo LIMPOPO (DoE)

Maleho Gaoretelwe North West (DoE)

Thabo Sechele North West (DoE)

Selogilwe Lefafa North West (DoE)

Clifford Barnes Northern Cape (DoE)

Xolile Jack Northern Cape (DoE)

Enoch Rabotapi NAPTOSA

Jabulani Khumalo NEHAWU

Nomlamli Mahanjana ETDP SETA

Zukie Ngozi ETDP SETA

Shele Papane ETDP SETA

Albert Mathebula ETDP SETA
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Name Constituency

Pat Motubatse NEHAWU

Bradley Skei NEHAWU

Xoliswa Adams NEHAWU

Mark Henning NAISA

Simon Losaba NAISA

Thami Ntanda SADTU

Vincent Maphumulo SADTU

Michelle Greyvenstien APPEDT

Dr Mamise Motshekga-Sebolai APPEDT

Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA

John Landman NTESU

Name Constituency

Basil Rhodes SAUVCA

Karen Vermaak FEDUSA

Moses Poe NUTESA

Andre Van der Bijl NUTESA

Robin Minne NUTESA

Pinky Mamabolo SANGOCO

Moses Msotywa ABET

Dennis George FEDUSA

Shahieda Hendriks CTP

Dr Ben Molokoe NAPTOSA

Name Constituency

Louw Botha SAUVCA

Takalani Nwedamutswu Gauteng (DoE)

Charlie Molepo RAU

Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA

Name Constituency

Nomlamli Mahanjana ETDP SETA

Fanyana Ndashe ETDP SETA

Itumeleng Mabena ETDP SETA
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Appendix G - List of Consistuency Support Services Joint Standing Committee members

Appendix H - List of ETDQA Joint Standing Committee members

Name Constituency

Zola Gwanya North West (DoE)

Martiens J. Loots Northern (DoE)

Mark Henning NAISA

Bertha Kitching Free State (DoE) 

Sandile Sukati Mpumalanga (DoE)

Tello Khodumo SACE

John Landman NTESU

Silas Sebola SADTU

Andronica Mahlare NUTESA

Name Constituency

Stephanie Faris SANGOCO

Thabiso Moyo Adult Educators

Khulekani Mathe Adult Educators

Kathleen  Luckett SAUVCA

Dr EM Genis CTP

Michael Maher NAPTOSA

Busisiwe Mncube SADTU

Muavia Gallie SACE

Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA

Name Constituency

Nkosana Dolopi SADTU

Khanyi Matshongo SADTU

Ian Corbishley NAPTOSA

Benjamin Molokoe NAPTOSA

Vuyo Ngwaxaxa NEHAWU

Dan Motaung NEHAWU

Trevor Majola SAUVCA/CTP

Ronel Rizzo NUTESA

Name Constituency

N L Nkatini (Dr) NTESU

Simon Losaba NAISA

Ntombi Mxenge MPULANGA (DoE)

Pinky Mamabolo SANGOCO

Dan Mavasa LIMPOPO

Washington Boyi NATIONAL - DoE

Nombeko Nontshokweni EASTERN CAPE

TOWN

Name Constituency

Vacant NUTESA

Vacant NEHAWU

Jay Rumnundlall APPETD

Jan Hurter Western Cape (DoE)

Yaswant Gordhan External Representative

(Chairperson)

Name Constituency

Nell Theo Internal Auditor 

(Gobodo Inc)

Marais Aldorette Auditor General’s Office

Nomlamli Mahanjana ETDP SETA CEO

Daisy Nyamane ETDP SETA CFO

J2550 - Pakamisa Communications (012) 667 4261

Appendix F - List of Learnership Joint Standing Committee members

Name Constituency

Liz Greyling SAUVCA

Anastasia Sejane SANGOCO

Charlotte Mbali NTESU

Bradley Skei NEHAWU

Dennis George FEDUSA

Rob Minne NUTESA

Bizzah Mantantana NEHAWU

Samson Makhado NAISA

Thabo Mataboge National (DoE)

Name Constituency

Lydia Mathinya Gauteng (DoE)

Sibongile Zincume/Xolile Jack Northern Cape (DoE)

Paseka Njobe SADTU

Pumezo Mhletywa NAPTOSA

Dr FJ Potgieter SAOU

Fundile Ngwendu SADTU

Dr B Molokoe NAPTOSA

Dumisani Xaba Kwazulu Natal (DoE)

Tello Khudumo SACE



Education, Training and Development Practices SETA

Education, Training and Development Practices SETA

Tel: (011) 517 3720

Fax: (011) 807 7490

email: info@etdpseta.org.za

www.etdpseta.org.za
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Building X
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Rivonia
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